CABINET
Thursday, 11th July, 2019
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Cabinet, which will be held at:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Thursday, 11th July, 2019
at 7.00 pm .
G. Blakemore
Chief Executive
Democratic Services
Officer

A. Hendry (Democratic Services)
Tel: (01992) 564246 Email:
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:
Councillors C Whitbread (Leader of the Council, Leader of the Conservative Group)
(Chairman), S Stavrou (Deputy Leader and Business Support Services Portfolio Holder)
(Vice-Chairman), N Avey, N Bedford, A Lion, A Patel, J Philip, S Kane and H Whitbread

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND
1.

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
This meeting is to be webcast and Members are reminded of the need to activate
their microphones before speaking.
The Chairman will read the following announcement:
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to
the Internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated viewing, with copies of the
recording being made available for those that request it.
By being present at this meeting, it is likely that the recording cameras will capture
your image and this will result in your image becoming part of the broadcast.
You should be aware that this may infringe your human and data protection rights. If
1

Cabinet

Thursday, 11 July 2019

you have any concerns then please speak to the Webcasting Officer.
Please could I also remind Members to activate their microphones before speaking.”
2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To be announced at the meeting.

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

4.

MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10)
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 13 June 2019.

5.

REPORTS OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS
To receive oral reports from Portfolio Holders on current issues concerning their
Portfolios, which are not covered elsewhere on this agenda.

6.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE CABINET
To receive any questions submitted by members of the public and any requests to
address the Cabinet.
(a)

Public Questions

To answer questions asked by members of the public after notice in accordance with
the provisions contained within Part 4 of the Constitution (Council Rules, Rule Q3)
on any matter in relation to which the Cabinet has powers or duties or which affects
the District.
(b)

Requests to Address the Cabinet

Any member of the public or a representative of another organisation may address
the Cabinet on any agenda item (except those dealt with in private session as
exempt or confidential business) due to be considered at the meeting, in accordance
with the provisions contained within Article 7 of the Constitution (The Executive,
Paragraphs 27 and 28).
7.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
To consider any matters of concern to the Cabinet arising from the Council’s
Overview and Scrutiny function and to identify any matters that the Cabinet would
like the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to examine as part of its work
programme.

8.

FIRE SAFETY POLICY AND INSTALLATION OF SPRINKLERS - COUNCIL
OWNED HOUSING ACCOMMODATION (Pages 11 - 22)
To consider the attached report (C-004-2019/20).
2

Cabinet
9.

Thursday, 11 July 2019

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE LOCAL PLAN: UPDATE ON PROGRESS (Pages 23
- 52)
To consider the attached report (C-006-2019/20).

10.

DELIVERING INFRASTRUCTURE IN THE DISTRICT: DEVELOPER
CONTRIBUTIONS STRATEGY (Pages 53 - 130)
To consider the attached report (C-007-2019/20).

11.

MORETON, BOBBINGWORTH AND THE LAVERS NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN
(Pages 131 - 146)
To consider the attached report (C-005-2019/20).

12.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6
and 24 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that
the permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary
agenda of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks' notice of non-urgent
items is required.

13.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Exclusion
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business
set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):
Agenda Item No

Subject

14

Group Company Structure

Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
3

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining
the exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least
24 hours prior to the meeting.
Background Papers
Article 17 of the Constitution (Access to Information) define background papers as
being documents relating to the subject matter of the report which in the Proper
Officer's opinion:
3

Cabinet

Thursday, 11 July 2019

(a)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b)

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political
advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection one copy of each of the
documents on the list of background papers for four years after the date of the
meeting. Inspection of background papers can be arranged by contacting either the
Responsible Officer or the Democratic Services Officer for the particular item.
14.

GROUP COMPANY STRUCTURE (Pages 147 - 268)
To consider the attached report (C-008-2019/20).

4

Agenda Item 4
EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
CABINET MINUTES
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

13 June 2019

Place:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

Time:

7.00 - 7.29 pm

Members
Present:

C Whitbread (Chairman), N Avey, N Bedford, A Lion, A Patel, J Philip,
S Kane and H Whitbread

Other
Councillors:

S Heather, J Lea,
J H Whitehouse

C McCredie,

S Neville,

M Sartin,

D Stocker

and

Apologies:

S Stavrou

Officers
Present:

G Blakemore (Chief Executive), A Blom-Cooper (Interim Assistant Director
(Planning Policy)), J Nolan (Service Director (Commercial & Regulatory
Services)), M Warr (Economic Development Officer), K Pabani (Chief Estates
Officer), A Hendry (Senior Democratic Services Officer), J Leither
(Democratic Services Officer), T Carne (Corporate Communications
Manager) and S Kits (Social Media and Customer Services Officer)

1.

WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
The Leader of Council made a short address to remind everyone present that the
meeting would be broadcast live to the internet, and would be capable of repeated
viewing, which could infringe their human and data protection rights.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member
Conduct.

3.

MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 11th April 2019 be taken as
read and signed by the Leader as a correct record.

4.

REPORTS OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS
The Planning Services Portfolio Holder reported that the Local Plan hearings had
recently reached an end and the inspector had closed the proceedings with a closing
statement that would go up on the Council’s website, pointing out that the next stage
of the examination would be for the Council to prepare a schedule of main
modifications to make the plan sound. The Council will have to consult on these main
modifications for a period of six weeks and then after that was done the inspector
would be able to finalise her report for the Council having regard to consultation
responses and other relevant matters. She would be writing to us by 12th July with
her initial advice about whether further changes were required and whether any
further work was needed to support them without prejudice to any of her final

Page 5

1

Cabinet

13 June 2019

conclusions. She was complementary to us at the end of the examination and he
would like his thanks noted to Alison Blom-Cooper and the rest of the Planning Team
and to Mark Beard our Barrister for all the work they had put in, representing us at
the hearings. It had been a long and thankless task and he was pleased we came
through it so well. He also thanked the webcast team who had made it available in
real time to our residents. He concluded that this was not the end, but they had made
significant progress, but there was still more work to be done.
The Leader also added his thanks to officers noting how professionally run the
hearings had been.
5.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE CABINET
The Cabinet noted that no public questions or requests to address the Cabinet had
been received for consideration at the meeting.

6.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
The Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee reported that the following
items of business had been considered at its meeting held on 4 June 2019:
(a)
they had noted the Council’s priorities for 2019/20 as set out by the Leader of
the Council;
(b)
the Committee’s work programme for the year was reviewed and one item
relating to the transformation programme was deleted with a possibility of bringing
forward a topic on the Local High Streets. It was also agreed that the item on adult
social care be moved from the reserve programme into the main work programme for
the current year;
(c)
the Committee also appointed members, chairmen and vice-chairmen to the
three new select committees; and
(d)
the Committee also agreed to set up a Task and Finish Panel to look into
waste recycling.

7.

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
The Planning Services Portfolio Holder introduced the report on the draft statement
of community involvement. He noted that the preparation of an SCI was a legal
requirement of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (section 18) as
amended by the Planning Act 2008, the Localism Act 2011 and the Neighbourhood
Planning Act 2017. The legislation required the Council to prepare a statement
setting out how it would notify and consult the community and other stakeholders in
the preparation and review of planning policy which included: the Local Plan;
supplementary planning documents; neighbourhood plans; policy such as that
contained in master-plans; and in the consideration of planning applications. This
report set out the proposed updated Draft Statement of Community Involvement
(SCI) which needed to be published for a period of public consultation. It explains its
purpose.
Decision:
That the Draft Statement of Community Involvement attached as Appendix A of the
report be approved for publication for a six week period of consultation.

Page 6

2

Cabinet

13 June 2019

Reasons for Proposed Decision:
To comply with the statutory requirement to review the SCI every five years and to
update the SCI to include recent changes in legislation and practice.
Other Options for Action:
Not to consult on a new SCI. This would mean that the Council was not meeting the
legislative requirements and was not seeking an up to date, fit for purpose, statement
regarding the engagement of stakeholders and the public in the planning service and
system.
8.

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
The Commercial and Regulatory Services Portfolio Holder introduced the report on
the asset management strategy. He noted that the proposed Asset Management
Strategy (AMS) set out the rationale for existing and future asset management
initiatives. The AMS would assist EFDC in achieving its corporate objectives as
guided by the Council’s Core Principles and identified links with other key council
strategies.
Councillor Philip stated that in relation to a local trading company and a local housing
company, it was right to be looking at these as options, however we should be aware
how unsuccessful other councils have been with these and that a risk assessment
was needed before we took this forward. But in general, it was sensible to have an
asset management strategy, we just needed a proper assessment of risk. The
Commercial and Regulatory Portfolio Holder replied to say that a number of options
will be coming forward and that a further report will be coming to the next Cabinet
meeting.
Councillor Janet Whitehouse commented that there appeared to be no real focus in
the report on social impact and the wellbeing on the community. There were a lot of
small charities and volunteer groups who found it hard to find suitable and affordable
premises. She would like the council to consider if they should offer help to the
private sector by providing an information hub where charities and small businesses
could come for information on affordable accommodation, or the council could
provide a range of affordable accommodation. The Service Director, Commercial and
Regulatory, replied that officers would always bring these sorts of things to members
so that they could consider accommodating some organisations not covered by the
general tenant of the strategy. Mr Pabani added that they often received requests
from local charities and organisations and they did look for accommodation for them
when they could. They had a long history of partnering up with local organisations
and had found them accommodation in the past. Councillor C Whitbread commented
that it was a good thing that we helped out like this and he also noted that we were
very generous with our grants offered to local community-based projects.
Councillor Lion agreed that this strategy was the right thing to do in order to
maximise our opportunities and Councillor Kane added that this was a good direction
of travel for the council. He asked what the timeframe was to get the LHC up and
running; and also we need to ensure that due consideration was given to the
planning process, if we went down the housing company route. The Service Director,
Commercial and Regulatory, replied that there would be a further report coming to
the next cabinet meeting outlining the structure envisaged and the timelines.

Page 7

3

Cabinet

13 June 2019

Councillor Neville noted that the paperwork talked about the housing to be provided;
what percentage would be affordable housing and of the six sites mentioned were
some of them commercial sites in use or had any of them residential properties. The
Commercial and Regulatory Services Portfolio Holder replied that it was too early to
discuss this at this stage and that he should wait for the next report. Councillor Philip
added that the Council would be bound by its Local Plan in any case.
Decision:
That the Cabinet approved the Asset Management Strategy.
Reasons for Proposed Decision:
At present, the council’s approach to its land and property assets is on a case by
case basis or by reference to approaches taken in the past. These are not always fit
for purpose in the current market and there exists no overall strategy which provides
links to our Corporate Plan or Medium Term Financial Strategy. Adoption of an AMS
will bring EFDC in line with other Local Authorities who have adopted similar
strategies and will ensure EFDC is making the best use of its assets in a
comprehensive, cohesive, economic and socially responsible way.
Adoption of the AMS will ensure the various Directorates in the council are
approaching the acquisition and management of assets in a cohesive, complimentary
and joined up way.
Other Options for Action:
This report addresses the absence of an AMS therefore the only options for action
are to amend the proposed strategy in line with the wishes of Members or not to
adopt the strategy at all.
9.

CORPORATE PLAN PROGRESS REPORT Q4, 2018/19
The Leader of the Council noted that this report had already been considered at
various other meetings including the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Decision:
The Cabinet noted the quarter 4 outturn of the Corporate Plan Progress for 2018/19.
Reasons for Proposed Decisions:
This combined report brings together the performance of the Council against the
Corporate Plan and gives ‘clear line of sight’ for performance across the Council via
the new benefits maps and performance indicator set. The benefits maps provide an
opportunity for the Council to focus attention on how specific areas for improvement
will be addressed, and how opportunities will be exploited, and better outcomes
delivered. It was important that relevant performance management processes were
in place to review and monitor performance against performance indicators to ensure
their continued achievability and relevance, and to identify proposals for appropriate
corrective action in areas of slippage or under performance.
Other Options for Action:

Page 8

4

Cabinet

13 June 2019

No other options were appropriate in this respect. Failure to monitor and review
performance and to consider corrective action where necessary could have negative
implications for judgements made about the Council’s progress and might mean that
opportunities for improvement were lost.
10.

ENDORSEMENT OF ESSEX & HERTS DIGITAL INNOVATION ZONE 'DIGITAL
INNOVATION STRATEGY'
The Strategic Projects Portfolio Holder introduced the report on the Essex and Herts
Digital Innovation Zone (DIZ). He noted that with Epping Forest DC leading, the
Essex & Herts Digital Innovation Zone (DIZ) comprised of five district council areas,
(two in eastern Hertfordshire and three in Essex) and involved partners from various
public bodies including the health economy, both tiers of local government, further
and higher education, business and the voluntary and community sector.
The partnership had jointly commissioned a strategic long-term overarching strategy
in conjunction with Arup. The strategy clearly set out long-term ambitions and an
understanding of the area’s current and future digital strengths and challenges. It did
however also include a series of recommendations for immediate action at an
operational level to improve digital performance and service levels.
The strategy was now complete and was considered by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 16 April 2019. A copy of the strategy was included with papers for that
meeting and can be found at:
https://rds.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=395&MId=9717. The
strategy was now presented to Cabinet for consideration and endorsement.
Councillor H Whitbread asked about how this would engage with elderly persons.
The Strategic Projects Portfolio Holder replied that this was fundamental to the
strategy, an example would its focus on keeping people at home longer; the smart
home approach using new technology such as the digital health strategy. Currently
they had just signed up to a £2.1million project, and were now waiting for
confirmation, this was a project for equipping 113 GP surgeries across the zone with
our broadband services.
Councillor Patel said that he had been following the progress of ‘DIZ’ since it started.
He would like to know what resources and investments had gone in and what the
return was since the start. The Strategic Projects Portfolio Holder noted that the
majority of the contributions had come from our partners, although we had put in a
small amount of money. Our resource input came mostly from Mr Warr and Mr
Houston in the form of their time. As for investments we had invested about £450k
and had achieved £10.5million investment from the Government. Councillor Patel
remarked that this was very impressive and put Epping Forest District Council at the
forefront of this innovation and was sighted as a model for other local authorities.
Councillor Lion agreed noting that we had been recognised by national government
for this unique strategy. It was a good model to replicate.
Decision:
That the Cabinet endorsed the Essex and Herts Digital Innovation Zone ‘Digital
Innovation Strategy’.

Page 9

5

Cabinet

13 June 2019

Reasons for Proposed Decision:
The strategy was to be formally adopted and endorsed by the full range of partners
represented on the DIZ Board. This will be the first time in the UK where partners
from the various tiers of local government, primary and secondary health care, further
and higher education, local businesses and the community and voluntary sector have
come together to agree an over-arching combined digital plan.
Other Options for Action:
Cabinet could choose to not endorse the strategy. This would make it
formally launch the strategy as a single unified partnership. It would also
the ability of the DIZ to bid for funding from central government who have
recognised the make-up of the DIZ partnership and its unique nature
strength and reason to support.
11.

difficult to
impact on
previously
as a key

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the
Cabinet.

12.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
The Cabinet noted that there was no business which necessitated the exclusion of
the public and press from the meeting.

CHAIRMAN

Page 10

6

Agenda Item 8
Report to the Cabinet
Report reference:
Date of meeting:
Portfolio:

C-004-2019/20
11 July 2019

Housing & Property Services

Subject:

Fire Safety Policy and installation of sprinklers - Council owned
housing accommodation
Responsible Officer:
Stuart Mitchell
(01992 564548).
Democratic Services Officer:

Adrian Hendry

(01992 564246).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
(1)
That, following endorsement by the Communities Select Committee, the Fire
Safety Policy for Council owned housing accommodation be adopted; and
(2)
That, subject to obtaining building regulations approval and listed building
consent, the retro-fitting of sprinkler systems into temporary housing accommodation
sites at Norway House and Hemnall House be approved.
Executive Summary:
On 15th January 2019, the Communities Select Committee considered a draft Fire Safety
Policy for Council owned housing accommodation and recommended its endorsement to
Cabinet. The policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the Council will apply to
identify, assess and reduce the risks to our residents of personal injury or damage to homes
caused by fire and to ensure compliance with the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order
2005. Its adoption is a key decision as it raises new issues of policy.
The Communities Select Committee also considered the retro-fitting of sprinkler systems into
residential accommodation at Norway House in North Weald and Hemnall House in Epping
and recommended their installation to Cabinet.
Reasons for Proposed Decision:
An approved Fire Safety Policy will provide a robust fire safety framework that secures the
safety and wellbeing of occupiers of, and visitors to, the Council’s residential accommodation.
The installation of sprinkler systems into properties with vulnerable residents will enable them
to live safely within this “higher risk” category of accommodation.
Other Options for Action:
Not to follow the recommendations of the Communities Select Committee and not endorse
the Fire Safety Policy or approve the installation of sprinkler systems.

Page 11

Report:
Background
1.
Following the tragic fire at Grenfell Tower on the 14th June 2017, the Communities
Select Committee requested a report on fire safety procedures in Council owned housing
accommodation. The report was considered by the Select Committee in January 2018 and it
was resolved that officers bring back to the Select Committee a draft Fire Safety Policy and a
feasibility study for the installation of sprinkler systems at each of the Council’s sheltered
housing sites, at Norway House in North Weald and at Hemnall House in Epping.
2.
In January 2019, a draft Fire Safety Policy and a sprinkler systems feasibility study
were presented to the Communities Select Committee with the outcome summarised below.
Fire Safety Policy
3.
The Council aims to provide a safe environment in which our residents are assured
that the risks of personal injury or damage to their homes caused by fire is minimised. The
Fire Safety Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the Council will apply to identify,
assess and reduce these risks to ensure compliance with the Regulatory Reform (Fire
Safety) Order 2005. The policy applies to occupiers and visitors of all the Council’s sheltered
and temporary accommodation and general needs blocks of flats.
4.
The policy requires fire risk assessments to be undertaken and regularly reviewed by
competent persons with a need to act upon any risks identified or recommendations made;
fire risk audits to be completed in association with Essex County Fire & Rescue Service; fire
safety awareness information to be made available to residents; undertake and maintain fire
precautions measures; upkeep of fire prevention, warning and detection measures and
equipment; and consideration, maintenance and improvement of fire safety in all works
programmes undertaken.
5.
Following consultation and advice from Essex County Fire & Rescue Service after the
Hackitt review into the Grenfell Tower fire, the Fire Safety Policy incorporates a “Stay Put”
Policy for all the Council’s general needs flats blocks and an “Evacuation” Policy for sheltered
and temporary accommodation blocks. The Fire Safety Policy also includes fire action advice
for general needs houses and bungalows.
6.
The Select Committee considered the draft Fire Safety Policy in detail and
recommended its endorsement to Cabinet.
Sprinkler Systems
7.
The Select Committee was asked to consider the costs and the benefits of installing
sprinkler systems into “high risk” residential accommodation and to make a recommendation
to Cabinet. “High risk” accommodation was considered to be the eight sheltered housing
sites, Norway House, Hemnall House and two general needs flats blocks with a single means
of escape staircase (Highwood Lane, Loughton and Hilltop Court, Woodford Bridge).
8.
A feasibility study of the “high risk” properties was conducted by a specialist fire safety
consultancy. Property types, their construction and the vulnerability of the residents were all
assessed together with historical data relating to frequency of fires, detection and monitoring
measures, escape procedures and systems in place to protect those in need of help.
9.
Although there is currently no legislative requirement for existing premises to be retrofitted with sprinkler systems, the consultants concluded that Hemnall House would

Page 12

significantly benefit from the retrofitting of sprinklers as it has both a mix of vulnerable
residents and is an old building with significant compartmentation issues which are unlikely to
be easily or cost-effectively addressed due to the age of the building and nature of the
construction. The consultants also concluded that Norway House has a mix of vulnerable
residents and, although it has a significantly more robust level of compartmentation, the
property has experienced a number of small fires and therefore the retrofitting of sprinklers
should be considered based on life safety risk.
10.
With regard to the sheltered schemes, the consultants concluded that all contain the
most vulnerable residents and that the retrofitting of sprinkler systems would present a
benefit in terms of life safety. However, because they all have high levels of existing active
and passive fire protection together with 24/7 monitoring and an increased level of
compartmentation, the costs outweigh the benefits in this instance. The two general needs
flats blocks were considered not to be classed as high risk by the consultants once statistical
and peer review evidence had been taken into account.
11.
The Select Committee considered the feasibility study and resolved that a
recommendation be made to Cabinet based on estimated costs of £145,000 for Norway
House (excluding the chalets), which would protect communal areas and individual rooms,
and £40,000 for Hemnall House. The Select Committee noted the possibility that funding
from the Essex County Fire & Rescue Service Sprinkler Fund may be available towards the
two sprinkler installations of £50,000 and £20,000 respectively. However, this is subject to an
application process and subsequent approval by the fire service.
Resource Implications:
An estimate of approximately £145,000 for the retro-fitting of a sprinkler system at Norway
House and approximately £40,000 for Hemnall House. Both installations can be funded from
existing budgets but applications will be submitted to the Essex County Fire & Rescue
Service Sprinkler Fund for contributions towards both schemes.
Legal and Governance Implications:
Housing Act 1985.
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.
Building Regulations.
Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:
Fire safety in Council owned housing accommodation.
Consultation Undertaken:
Communities Select Committee and Essex County Fire & Rescue Service.
Background Papers:
Draft Fire Safety Policy.
DDS (International) Ltd fire safety consultant feasibility study into sprinkler installations.
Risk Management:
The Fire Safety Policy looks at ways of minimizing the risks to occupiers of all Council owned
residential properties.

Page 13

The decision to install sprinklers should be taken by weighing up the likelihood, impact, costs
and benefits. The likelihood and impact assessment is set out in the fire safety consultant’s
report.
Should the Council not secure listed building consent to install sprinklers at Norway House,
regular fire risk assessments will continue to take place to mitigate the risks.

Page 14

Equality Impact Assessment
1. Under s.149 of the Equality Act 2010, when making decisions, Epping District Council must have
regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty, ie have due regard to:




eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and other conduct
prohibited by the Act,
advancing equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not,
fostering good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those
who do not, including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.

2. The characteristics protected by the Equality Act are:










age
disability
gender
gender reassignment
marriage/civil partnership
pregnancy/maternity
race
religion/belief
sexual orientation.

3. In addition to the above protected characteristics you should consider the cross-cutting elements
of the proposed policy, namely the social, economic and environmental impact (including rurality)
as part of this assessment. These cross-cutting elements are not a characteristic protected by
law but are regarded as good practice to include.
4. The Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) document should be used as a tool to test and analyse
the nature and impact of either what we do or are planning to do in the future. It can be used
flexibly for reviewing existing arrangements but in particular should enable identification where
further consultation, engagement and data is required.
5. Use the questions in this document to record your findings. This should include the nature and
extent of the impact on those likely to be affected by the proposed policy or change.
6. Where this EqIA relates to a continuing project, it must be reviewed and updated at each stage of
the decision.
7. All Cabinet, Council, and Portfolio Holder reports must be accompanied by an EqIA. An
EqIA should also be completed/reviewed at key stages of projects.
8. To assist you in completing this report, please ensure you read the guidance notes in the Equality
Analysis Toolkit and refer to the following Factsheets:
o
o
o
o
o
o

Factsheet 1: Equality Profile of the Epping Forest District
Factsheet 2: Sources of information about equality protected characteristics
Factsheet 3: Glossary of equality related terms
Factsheet 4: Common misunderstandings about the Equality Duty
Factsheet 5: Frequently asked questions
Factsheet 6: Reporting equality analysis to a committee or other decision making body

Page 15
MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 1: Identifying details
Your function, service area and team: Housing & Property Services; Property Maintenance
If you are submitting this EqIA on behalf of another function, service area or team, specify the
originating function, service area or team: N/A
Title of policy or decision: Fire Safety Policy - Council owned housing accommodation
Officer completing the EqIA: S Mitchell Tel: Ex 4548

Email: smitchell@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Date of completing the assessment: 01/06/19

Section 2: Policy to be analysed
2.1

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an existing policy, practice or
project?
Yes

2.2

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the policy (or decision):
The fire safety policy for council owned housing accommodation sets out the
principles and guidelines that the Council will apply to identify, assess and reduce
the risks to our residents of personal injury or damage to homes caused by fire and
to ensure compliance with the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie decommissioning or commissioning
a service)?
To reduce the risks to our residents of personal injury or damage to homes caused
by fire and to ensure compliance with the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order
2005.

2.3

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
 service users
 employees
 the wider community or groups of people, particularly where there are areas
of known inequalities?
Yes. The Fire Safety Policy applies to occupiers and visitors of the Council’s
sheltered and temporary accommodation and general needs blocks of flats
including introductory, secure and non-secure tenants, leaseholders and their
tenants.
Will the policy or decision influence how organisations operate?
No

Page 16
MC 16/02/17 v2

2.4

Will the policy or decision involve substantial changes in resources?
No

2.5

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the Council’s other policies and
how, if applicable, does the proposed policy support corporate outcomes?
Health & Safety Policy

Page 17
MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 3: Evidence/data about the user population and
consultation1
As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected
which will support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage,
customer satisfaction surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national,
regional and local data sources).
3.1

What does the information tell you about those groups identified?
The Fire Safety Policy has an impact on residents located in individual Council
properties and will not affect groups of the population.

3.2

Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision you want to implement? If so, what were their views and how have
their views influenced your decision?
Not required.

3.3

If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected
by the policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation
or provide reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:
Community engagement is not required as the Fire Safety Policy has an impact on
residents located in individual Council properties.

Page 18
MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 4: Impact of policy or decision
Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you now
know.
Description of impact

Nature of impact
Positive, neutral, adverse
(explain why)

Extent of impact
Low, medium, high
(use L, M or H)

Age
Disability
Gender
Gender reassignment
Marriage/civil partnership
Pregnancy/maternity

Positive; The Fire Safety Policy will have
a positive impact on all of the identified
equality groups as tenants, leaseholders
and visitors to Council owned housing
accommodation will benefit from a
reduction in the risks associated with fire.

Race
Religion/belief
Sexual orientation

Page 19
MC 16/02/17 v2

H

Section 5: Conclusion
Tick
Yes/No as
appropriate
5.1

Does the EqIA in
Section 4 indicate that
the policy or decision
would have a medium
or high adverse impact
on one or more
equality groups?

Page 20
MC 16/02/17 v2

No



Yes

If ‘YES’, use the action
plan at Section 6 to describe
the adverse impacts
and what mitigating actions
you could put in place.

Section 6: Action plan to address and monitor adverse impacts
What are the potential
adverse impacts?

What are the mitigating actions?

Page 21
MC 16/02/17 v2

Date they will be
achieved.

Section 7: Sign off
I confirm that this initial analysis has been completed appropriately.
(A typed signature is sufficient.)
Signature of Head of Service: Paul Pledger

Date: 01/06/19

Signature of person completing the EqIA: Stuart Mitchell

Date: 01/06/19

Advice
Keep your director informed of all equality & diversity issues. We recommend that you forward
a copy of every EqIA you undertake to the director responsible for the service area. Retain a
copy of this EqIA for your records. If this EqIA relates to a continuing project, ensure this
document is kept under review and updated, eg after a consultation has been undertaken.

Page 22
MC 16/02/17 v2

Agenda Item 9
Report to the Cabinet
Report reference: C-006-2019/20
Date of Meeting: 11 July 2019
Subject:

Implementation of the Local Plan: Update on progress

Responsible Officer:

Alison Blom-Cooper (01992 564066)

Democratic Services:

Adrian Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
(1)

That the progress of Masterplans and Concept Frameworks, including the use
of Planning Performance Agreements and the progress of other proposals at
pre-application and application stage be noted (see Appendices);

(2)

The projects reviewed by the Quality Review Panel during 2018/19 are noted;

(3)

The infrastructure contributions from Section 106 achieved within Epping
Forest District for financial year 2018/19 are noted and:

(4)

That members note the current position with regard to the Epping Forest
Special Area of Conservation.

Executive Summary
Following the October 2018 Cabinet meeting which set out the governance arrangements for
the implementation of the Local Plan, the Implementation Team made a commitment to
provide members with regular updates on the progress of Masterplans and Concept
Frameworks within Epping Forest District to ensure that members are kept fully up to date.
This report therefore provides members with an update on the progress of Strategic
Masterplans, Concept Frameworks, Planning Performance Agreements, the Quality Review
Panel and developer contributions within the District.
As part of the Independent Examination of the Local Plan, the Council have agreed and
signed Statements of Common Ground with all the site promoters of the following strategic
sites: North Weald Bassett, Waltham Abbey North, South Epping, West Ongar and South
Nazeing. In relation to the Garden Town sites, which consists of Latton Priory, Water Lane
and East of Harlow, the Council were able to sign Statements of Common Ground with all of
the principle site promoters.
The strategic sites are progressing well and are all on track to meet the delivery of housing
noted within the Housing Implementation Strategy Update 2019.

Page 23

Reasons for Proposed Decision




To ensure that members are kept fully up to date on the progress of Masterplans and
Concept Frameworks and other major proposals being promoted within the District.
That members note the projects reviewed by the Quality Review Panel
That members note the infrastructure contributions achieved within the District

Other Options for Action:
Not to update members on the progress on the above issues would be contrary to the
commitment made by the Implementation Team as noted in the 18 October 2018 Cabinet
Report
Report:
Strategic Masterplans, Concept Frameworks and other allocated sites
1. The Local Plan Submission Version 2017 (LPSV) promotes a joined up, collaborative
and proactive approach to the planning and implementation of key strategic sites
across Epping Forest District. The production of Masterplans and Concept
Frameworks will ensure that development proposals are brought forward in
accordance with the Council’s priorities and policies and facilitate the delivery of
necessary infrastructure. Such an approach is an important step towards boosting
the timely delivery of high quality development and infrastructure within the District.
2. Strategic Masterplans and Concept Frameworks provide an overarching framework
to ensure that development is brought forward in a coordinated and coherent way in
accordance with high quality place making principles. The planning applications
which follow must demonstrate general conformity with an endorsed Masterplan or
Concept Framework. As set out in the 18 October 2018 Cabinet Report, the Council’s
Local Plan Cabinet Committee (LPCC) has the authority to approve Draft Strategic
Masterplans and Concept Frameworks for consultation. Following the six-week
consultation period, Strategic Masterplans will then be taken to Cabinet for formal
endorsement as a material planning consideration. The process for Concept
Frameworks is broadly similar, however owing to their smaller scale, these will only
be taken to LPCC once for formal endorsement.
3. The LPSV has identified site allocations which should be subject to the Strategic
Masterplanning approach (see LPSV para 2.90 and 2.91). These include the
following masterplans:
 Latton Priory
 Water Lane
 East of Harlow
 North Weald Bassett
 North Weald Airfield
 South Epping
 Waltham Abbey North
 Jessel Green
 Limes Farm Estate

Page 24

And Concept Frameworks (see LPSV paras 2.99 and 2.100) for sites in:



West Ongar
South Nazeing.

4. As set out in paragraph 15 of the report to Cabinet on 18 October 2018 a
commitment was made to provide members with regular updates on the progress of
masterplans and concept frameworks within Epping Forest District to ensure that
members are kept fully informed of the progression of each plan.
5. The Implementation Team have been proactively engaging with relevant site
promoters to progress the Strategic Masterplan and Concept Framework process.
Some strategic sites are more advanced than others, but good progress has been
made. Now that the local plan hearing sessions have been completed there will be a
need to progress these in order to ensure that each of the sites will meet their
projected delivery of housing, in accordance with the staggered trajectory as set out
in the Housing Implementation Strategy Update 2019.
6. Alongside the Strategic Masterplan and Concept Framework sites, the
Implementation and Development Management Teams have been progressing some
of the smaller allocation sites contained within the LPSV. As with the strategic sites,
some of these proposed allocations are further advanced than others, but officers are
encouraged by the progress which has been made to date and work continues to
progress their delivery in accordance with the Housing Trajectory.
7. Appendix B provides an update on the progress of the Masterplans and Concept
Frameworks; Appendix C provides an update on the progress of each of the strategic
and other allocated sites and Appendix D provides information on other proposals on
non allocated sites over 0.2hectares in size or more than 6 dwellings.
Quality Review Panel
8. A Quality Review Panel (QRP) was established in April 2018 for both EFDC and for
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town. The Panels comprise of 18 built environment
specialists who provide independent advice to support the delivery of high quality
developments. The panel is managed externally by Frame Projects, and coordinated
internally by the Implementation Team. The Chair of the Panel is Peter Maxwell.
Details of the Panel and Terms of reference are available on the website.
9. As set out in the 18 October 2018 Cabinet Report, and in policies SP 3 and DM 9 of
the emerging Local Plan, it is expected that schemes comprising 50 or more
residential units or 5,000sqm of commercial/other floor space will be considered by
the QRP. Smaller complex or contentious schemes can also be recommended for
review. The panel is also available to review strategic planning and policy
documents.
10. To date, the Panel has undertaken 17 EFDC reviews in total, with 4 of these a return
by the applicant for second reviews. There have been 4 reviews of Strategic
Masterplans (Latton Priory twice, Water Lane and North Weald Bassett), with officers

Page 25

from both Implementation and Development Management utilising the QRP (see
Appendix E).
11. In June 2019, an Annual Meeting was held for the QRP, with 12 panel members in
attendance and officers from EFDC and the HGGT partner authorities. Highlights and
lessons learnt from the previous year of reviews were shared, and key quality and
design topics raised from the reviews were discussed.
12. The EFDC/HGGT Quality Review Panel is currently undergoing monitoring and
evaluation, with feedback being gathered on the process and the impact of quality
review, and the learning from the Annual Meeting. This will be published in a public
Annual Report to ensure that the panel remains accessible, accountable and
transparent. In accordance with the agreed terms of reference, reports provided at
the pre-application stage are not normally made public but once applications are
submitted they become a public document and are published on the Council’s
website. The reports provide advice and guidance to members and officers and are a
material planning consideration in the determination of planning applications.
Developer Contributions update
13. This report also provides an update on the S106 agreements completed in financial
year 2018/19 (see Appendix A) to provide Infrastructure in support of the policies in
the Local Plan Submission Version, Infrastructure Delivery Plan and associated
documents.
14. The Epping Forest District Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan was published in
2017 with the Local Plan Submission Version. The Council is now undertaking further
work to define infrastructure requirements and set out an approach to funding and
developer contributions (see Agenda Item Report on ‘Delivering Infrastructure in the
District - Developer Contributions Strategy) which will provide internal procedures
and guidance to ensure that the Council will effectively administer, monitor and
deliver infrastructure to support planned growth in the District.
15. An Infrastructure Delivery Plan Topic Paper has been produced that provides a highlevel framework to the apportionment and pooling arrangements for key
infrastructure. It covers highways, public transport, education, health, open space
and green infrastructure, sports facilities and community facilities but does not go as
far as grouping developments into specific ‘pools’. The Topic paper also provides
information on those external funding sources outlined in the IDP, including the work
currently ongoing to progress and secure funding, the risks of funding not being in
place and contingency measures.
16. Addendum to the Topic Papers on Education and Highways have been published
and Sport Infrastructure is currently being produced. Further work will be carried out
to produce detailed addendums on Sustainable Transport, Health, Community
Facilities and Open Space.
17. The Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Infrastructure Delivery Plan was published in
April 2019 and includes the infrastructure requirements of the Garden Town, and all

Page 26

of the sites in detail, including the three garden town communities that are within
Epping Forest District.

Current Position on Epping Forest SAC
18. Under the Habitats Regulations, the Epping Forest SAC is classified as a ‘European
Site’ and, as such, any plans and projects (including applications for planning
permission) that are likely, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects,
to have a significant effect on the SAC must be subject to an assessment, known as
an Appropriate Assessment (AA). The purpose of an AA is to ascertain whether any
development plan or proposal, either alone or in combination, will not harm the
integrity of the European Site.
19. The Council has a legal duty as the ‘competent authority’ under the Habitats
Regulations to protect the Epping Forest SAC from the effects of development (both
individually and in combination). Specifically, two issues have been identified that are
likely to have a significant effect on the integrity of the Epping Forest SAC, namely:


The impact of increased levels of visitors using the Forest for recreation arising
from new development (referred to as recreational pressure); and



The result of damage to the health of the protected habitats and species of flora
within the Forest, including trees and potentially the heathland habitats, from air
pollution generated by increased motor vehicle usage (referred to as "air quality").

20. Policies DM 2 and DM 22 of the LPSV provide the policy context for dealing with
identified issues in relation to the effect of development on the integrity of the Epping
Forest Special Area of Conservation (SAC) as a result of increased visitor pressure
arising from new residential development within 6.2km of the SAC, and from the
effects of air quality throughout the District.
21. The Council commissioned a Habitats Regulations Assessment (January 2019) of
the Epping Forest District Local Plan (2011-2033) Submission Vision (the 2019
HRA), which has been published on the Council Local Plan Examination website.
The 2019 HRA includes an Appropriate Assessment of the planned development
within the Local Plan and the effect of that development on the Epping Forest SAC.
The 2019 HRA concludes that, subject to securing the urbanisation/recreational
pressure and air quality mitigation measures to which Epping Forest District Council
has committed, the adoption of the Local Plan will have no adverse effect on the
Epping Forest SAC.
22. However, following their review of the 2019 HRA, Natural England has maintained
their objection to the Local Plan, citing a number of specific concerns about the HRA,
which are currently being considered by the Council within the context of the Local
Plan Examination and generally.

Page 27

Recreational Pressure
23. Notwithstanding this, an Interim Approach to Managing Recreational Pressure has
been developed through joint working with the Conservators of Epping Forest and
relevant local authorities, with assistance and advice from Natural England. This was
agreed by the Council's Cabinet on 18 October 2018. The Council's Interim Approach
concerns the whole of the SAC, not just that part lying within the Epping Forest
District. The remainder of the SAC lies within the boundaries of the London Boroughs
of Waltham Forest and Redbridge, respectively.
24. The Interim Approach to Managing Recreational Pressure identifies a number of
costed schemes and the resources needed to support the implementation of
avoidance and mitigation measures that have been identified in partnership with the
Conservators of Epping Forest. To fund these mitigation measures over the Local
Plan period (ending on 31 March 2033), the total financial contribution to be secured
from new residential development within Epping Forest District is £1,347,837. The
Interim Approach apportions the costs of implementing the strategy, including the
measures identified, on a proportional basis, having had regard to the findings of a
2017 Visitor Survey, national planning policy and practice guidance, and the relevant
legislative and legal framework.
25. As a result, the contribution to be sought from individual residential development
schemes within 0 – 3 kms of the Epping Forest SAC boundary, involving a net
increase in the number of residential units, is £352 per dwelling.
Air Quality
26. The Interim Approach referred to above does not, however, address the significant
effect that all residential and employment development within the District is likely to
have on the SAC with regards to air quality. There is currently no interim approach to
managing air quality for the District and the Council and other partner organisations
continue to work together to identify an acceptable air quality mitigation strategy.
27. As competent authority under Habitats Regulations, the Council cannot lawfully grant
planning permission for any development proposals within the District that are likely
to have an air pollution impact on the Epping Forest SAC (when considered alone
and in combination with other plans or projects), save where an Appropriate
Assessment demonstrates that the granting permission will not have an adverse
impact on the integrity of the SAC. Until such a time as appropriate air quality
mitigation strategy has been agreed with Natural England and approved by the
Council, planning permission for development which would result in increased
vehicular movements cannot be granted.
Resource Implications:
As set out in the 18 October 2018 Cabinet Report, the successful delivery of the Garden
Town and the other strategic sites within Epping Forest District will require considerable

Page 28

commitment of officer time from EFDC. The noting of the contents of this report do not give
rise to additional resource implications.
Legal and Governance Implications:
The work on the Strategic Masterplans and Concept Frameworks has been developed in
accordance with Government policy (NPPF) and Planning Law.
Safer, Cleaner, and Greener Implications:
The Local Plan contains a policy designed to promote the notion of making good places to
live, work and visit. This will include safer by design principles, sustainable development, the
provision of alternatives to the car, energy efficiency and environmental considerations as
well as sustainable drainage systems and quality green infrastructure. Strategic
Masterplans and Concept Frameworks will be the mechanism for these place-making
measures to be delivered in identified Masterplan Areas.
Consultation Undertaken:
Some of the Strategic sites have been the subject of informal public consultation and
engagement. However as set out in the Councils Masterplan and Concept Framework Plan
Briefing note, these sites will be subject to public consultation in accordance with an
endorsed Statement of Community Involvement.
Background Papers:
C-015-2018/19: Governance arrangements for Local Plan Implementation, 18 October 2018
Habitat Regulations Assessment 2019
Risk Management:
If the Council was not to take a pro-active stance on the delivery of Masterplans and major
applications arising from the Local Plan, there is a real risk of or development occurring of a
type that does not extract maximum value for the provision of social infrastructure and poor
quality development may occur.

Page 29

APPENDIX A

Epping Forest District Council (S106) Developer Contributions Report 2018/19
The headline figures for 2018/2019 financial year are set out in the table below:
 5 Legal Agreements signed during the year
 £461,396 in S106 contributions were secured
 £ in S106 funds were spent
Table 1: Financial Contributions secured through S106 Agreements
Type of Contribution
Affordable Housing
Community Facilities
Education
Emergency Services
Healthcare
Open Space
Recreation
Special Area of Conservation (SAC) Recreational Pressure
Sport & Leisure
Stewardship
Transport & Highways
TOTAL VALUE

Value £

£436,756
£10,208
£14,432

£461,396

Table 2: Financial Contributions received through S106 Agreements
Type of Contribution
Affordable Housing
Community Facilities
Education
Emergency Services
Healthcare
Open Space
Recreation
Special Area of Conservation (SAC) Recreational Pressure
Sport & Leisure
Stewardship
Transport & Highways
TOTAL VALUE

Value £

£14,080

£14,080

 S106 agreements relating to the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation:
Recreational Pressure:
-

12 unilateral agreements with contributions paid on completion.

-

1 unilateral agreement with contributions to be paid 10 working days
following written notice to the Council of the commencement.

Page 30

Air Quality
-

Approximately 80 planning decisions held in abeyance amounting to
approximately 220 residential units currently awaiting approval pending
agreement of the Habitats Regulations Assessment.

Legal Enforcement
The following outstanding amounts recovered:
Site
Land at Millrite Engineering, Ongar

Contribution
£32,000 and indexation of £7,190

Internal Audit Report: Section 106 Agreements 2018/19
The audit formed part of the agreed 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan. An audit of Section
106 Agreements had not been undertaken in recent years.
The purpose of the audit was to consider whether the Council has effective
arrangements in place to administer Section 106 Agreements and ensure compliance
with its statutory responsibilities.
Audit opinion
The work undertaken by Internal Audit provides substantial assurance over the
Council’s arrangements to administer Section 106 Agreements and ensure
compliance with its statutory responsibilities.
Three recommendations were made:
1. the infrastructure strategy to be completed and approved as soon as is
practicable (see Agenda Item)
2. to receive relevant Northgate training so that this can be used as a basis for
administration and reporting of commitments under Section 106 agreements;
and
3. a quarterly Section 106 report to be provided to the Local Plans Cabinet
Committee alongside the monitoring of Masterplans.
Significant findings from the review will also be presented to the next Audit and
Governance Committee. Implementation of recommendations will be tracked through
a separate report to Corporate Governance Group and the Audit and Governance
Committee.

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Equality Impact Assessment for 11 July 2019 report to Cabinet on progress on Local Plan
Implementation

Section 1: Identifying details
Your function, service area and team: Planning Directorate
If you are submitting this EqIA on behalf of another function, service area or team, specify the
originating function, service area or team: N/A
Title of policy or decision: Update on the progress of strategic masterplans, concept
frameworks, planning performance agreements, the Quality Review Panel and contributions
from developers towards infrastructure
Officer completing the EqIA: Tel: Alison Blom-Cooper
ablomcooper@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Email:

Date of completing the assessment: 28 June 2019

Section 2: Policy to be analysed
2.1

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an existing policy, practice or
project? No

2.2

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the policy (or decision):
The report is to update members on the production of Strategic planning issues.
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie decommissioning or commissioning
a service)?
To ensure members are fully briefed on the progress made on strategic planning
issues.

2.3

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
 service users
 employees
 the wider community or groups of people, particularly where there are areas
of known inequalities?
No

2.4

Will the policy or decision involve substantial changes in resources?
No – the report is for information only.

2.5

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the Council’s other policies and
how, if applicable, does the proposed policy support corporate outcomes?
It fulfils a commitment made byPage
the Implementation
Team at the October 2018
33

Equality Impact Assessment on progress on Local Plan implementation 11 July 2019 Cabinet

cabinet to keep members updated on the progress of masterplans and strategic
frameworks.

Page 34
Equality Impact Assessment on progress on Local Plan implementation 11 July 2019 Cabinet

Section 3: Evidence/data about the user population and
consultation1
As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected
which will support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage,
customer satisfaction surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national,
regional and local data sources).
3.1

What does the information tell you about those groups identified?
This is not applicable – the report is for noting only.

3.2

Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision you want to implement? If so, what were their views and how have
their views influenced your decision?
N/A – as above

3.3

If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected
by the policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation
or provide reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:
N/A for reason noted in 3.1

Page 35
Equality Impact Assessment on progress on Local Plan implementation 11 July 2019 Cabinet

Section 4: Impact of policy or decision
Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you now
know.
Description of impact

Nature of impact
Positive, neutral, adverse
(explain why)

Age

None

N/A

Disability

None

N/A

Gender

None

N/A

Gender reassignment

None

N/A

Marriage/civil partnership

None

N/A

Pregnancy/maternity

None

N/A

Race

None

N/A

Religion/belief

None

N/A

Sexual orientation

None

N/A

Page 36
Equality Impact Assessment on progress on Local Plan implementation 11 July 2019 Cabinet

Extent of impact
Low, medium, high
(use L, M or H)

Section 5: Conclusion
Tick
Yes/No as
appropriate
 No

5.1
Does the EqIA in
Section 4 indicate that
the policy or decision
would have a medium
or high adverse impact
on one or more
equality groups?

Yes

If ‘YES’, use the action
plan at Section 6 to describe
the adverse impacts
and what mitigating actions
you could put in place.

No actual or likely adverse impacts have come to light.

Page 37
Equality Impact Assessment on progress on Local Plan implementation 11 July 2019 Cabinet

Section 6: Action plan to address and monitor adverse impacts
What are the potential
adverse impacts?

What are the mitigating actions?

Page 38
Equality Impact Assessment on progress on Local Plan implementation 11 July 2019 Cabinet

Date they will be
achieved.

Section 7: Sign off
I confirm that this initial analysis has been completed appropriately.
(A typed signature is sufficient.)
Signature of Head of Service: Alison Blom-Cooper

Date: 28 June 2019

Signature of person completing the EqIA: James Rogers

Date: 28 June 2019

Advice
Keep your director informed of all equality & diversity issues. We recommend that you forward
a copy of every EqIA you undertake to the director responsible for the service area. Retain a
copy of this EqIA for your records. If this EqIA relates to a continuing project, ensure this
document is kept under review and updated, eg after a consultation has been undertaken.

Page 39
Equality Impact Assessment on progress on Local Plan implementation 11 July 2019 Cabinet

This page is intentionally left blank

Masterplan Area / Concept
Framework Area

Latton Priory

Water Lane

East of Harlow

Local Plan policy and
site reference

Description of proposed allocation

Policy SP 4 & SP 5: SP
5.1

New Garden Town Community consisting
of approximately 1,050 homes, 2 hectares
of employment land, up to 5 traveller
pitches, a new primary and secondary
school and a local centre.
signed (August 2018)

Policy SP 4 & SP 5: SP
5.2

Policy SP 4 & SP 5: SP
5.3

New Garden Town Community consisting
of approximately 2,100 homes, up to 5
traveller pitches, a new primary school and
a local centre.
New Garden Town Community consisting
of approximately 750 homes, up to 5
traveller pitches, a new primary school, a
local centre, and a potential new
secondary school and potential relocation
of PAH.

PPA status

Masterplan and Concept Framework tracker
Delivery due to commence
(Housing Implementation
Strategy 2019)
QRP

2022/23

West Sumners signed (July
2018) & West Katherines
signed (May 2019)
2022/23

advanced stage of
discussion

11/10/2018 and 05/04/2019

2023/24

N/A

Masterplan

Page 41

Three masterplan engagement meetings have been held between EFDC
Officers, the site promoters and the North Weald Neighbourhood Plans
Steering Group. Topic based meetings regarding land drainage and
transport have been undertaken between EFDC officers, the site
promoters and Essex County Council. A meeting between EFDC officers
and the site promoters to discuss materplan options and an engagement
strategy undertaken in May. An initial Quality review Panel was held on
14th June 2019
14/06/2019

North Weald Airfield

Policy P 6: NWB.E4

Provision of new B1/B2/B8 employment
uses on NWB.E4 and retention and
expansion of aviation uses to the west of
the main runway

not commenced

2022/23

N/A

South Epping

Provision of approximately 950 homes, a
new neighbourhood centre to include
community facilities, employment, health
facilities and retail uses as well as a new
Policy P 1: EPP.R1 and primary school and early years childcare
EPP.R2
provision

advanced stage of
discussion

2023/24

N/A

Waltham Abbey North

Masterplan
High level meetings have been held between key stakeholders including
EFDC, the main site promoters (Miller Homes), ECC, HDC and PAH NHS
Trust. Communication is ongoing with three smaller land promoters
within the masterplan area regarding bringing their sites forward for
development

2022/23

Provision of approximately 740 homes and
5 traveller pitches as well as a new local
advanced stage of
and community centre
discussion

Masterplan

28/03/2019

Provision of approximately 1,050 homes
and 5 traveller pitches, a new local centre
including retail, community and health
facilities and the erection of a new primary advanced stage of
school
discussion

Policy P 3: WAL.R1,
WAL. T1, WAL.R2 and
WAL.R3

Proposal stage

Series of masterplanning meetings have been held and are ongoing
between key stakeholders including EFDC, the main site promoters (a
consortium of housebuilders including Persimmon, Taylor Wimpey and
Martin Grant Homes - West Katherines, and Manor Oak Homes - West
Sumners), ECC (Highway), and HDC. Representatives of the smaller sites
contained within Tylers Cross have recently begun to engage in the
Masterplanning process and engagement has begun with representatives
of Redwings

Policy P 6: NWB.R1,
NWB.T1, NWB.R2,
NWB.R3, NWB.R4 and
NWB.R5

North Weald Bassett

Timescales / progress update
Series of masterplanning meetings have been held and are ongoing
between key stakeholders including EFDC, the main site promoters
(Commercial Estates Projects Ltd and Hallam Land), ECC (Highway and
Education), and HDC. A community/member engagement programme is
currently being discussed

Masterplan
Initial interdepartmental discussions between EFDC officers undertaken
in January 2019. Project brief agreed by Cabinet on 11th April 2019. The
brief is currently out to tender to recruit Masterplanners to bring the site Out to tender forward. The masterplan will need to coordinate with the village
Masterplan not yet
masterplan
commenced
Masterplan meetings have been held between EFDC officers and the site
promoters to agree the process moving forward. Engagement has been
held between all landowners and Epping Town Council. A revised
timetable of topic based meetings is currently being discussed.

Masterplan
Initial meeting held between EFDC Officers and the site promoters in June
2018. A further meeting held in November 2018 to discuss the process
moving forward. The site promoters are currently in the process of
gathering the necessary technical work in order to progress the
production of the masterplan. A programme of topic based meetings is
due to commence in June/July.

2022/23

N/A

Masterplan
Materplan not yet commenced - awaiting adoption of the Local Plan

Jessel Green

Policy P 2: LOU.R5

provision of approximately 154 homes

not commenced

2028/29

N/A

Not commenced

Limes Farm

Policy P 7: CHIG.R6

Regeneration led development to provide
an additional 100 homes on the site as well
as new community and local service
facilities
not commenced

Masterplan not yet commenced - awaiting adoption of the Local Plan

2028/29

N/A

Not commenced
Discussions regarding a PPA and a project plan are are at an early stage

West Ongar Concept
Framework Area

Policy P 4: ONG.R1 and
ONG.R2
Provision of approximately 234 homes

initial discussions

2022/23

N/A

Concept Framework
Discussions regarding a PPA and a project plan are are at an early stage

South Nazeing Concept
Framework Area

Policy P 10: NAZE.R1,
NAZE.R3 and NAZE.R4 Provision of approximately 93 homes

initial discussions

2021/22

N/A

Concept Framework

Page 42

Appendix B - Masterplans and Concept Frameworks

Masterplan Area / Concept
Framework Area

Latton Priory

Masterplan and Concept Framework tracker
Delivery due to commence
(Housing Implementation
Strategy 2019)
QRP

Local Plan policy and
site reference

Description of proposed allocation

Policy SP 4 & SP 5: SP
5.1

New Garden Town Community consisting
of approximately 1,050 homes, 2 hectares
of employment land, up to 5 traveller
pitches, a new primary and secondary
school and a local centre.
signed (August 2018)

2022/23

PPA status

East of Harlow

Policy SP 4 & SP 5: SP
5.3

advanced stage of
discussion

2023/24

North Weald Bassett

Policy P 6: NWB.R1,
NWB.T1, NWB.R2,
NWB.R3, NWB.R4 and
NWB.R5

Provision of approximately 1,050 homes
and 5 traveller pitches, a new local centre
including retail, community and health
facilities and the erection of a new primary advanced stage of
school
discussion

2022/23

North Weald Airfield

Policy P 6: NWB.E4

Provision of new B1/B2/B8 employment
uses on NWB.E4 and retention and
expansion of aviation uses to the west of
the main runway

2022/23

South Epping

Provision of approximately 950 homes, a
new neighbourhood centre to include
community facilities, employment, health
facilities and retail uses as well as a new
Policy P 1: EPP.R1 and primary school and early years childcare
advanced stage of
EPP.R2
provision
discussion

Page 43

Water Lane

Policy SP 4 & SP 5: SP
5.2

New Garden Town Community consisting
of approximately 2,100 homes, up to 5
traveller pitches, a new primary school and
a local centre.
New Garden Town Community consisting
of approximately 750 homes, up to 5
traveller pitches, a new primary school, a
local centre, and a potential new
secondary school and potential relocation
of PAH.

Waltham Abbey North

Policy P 3: WAL.R1,
WAL. T1, WAL.R2 and
WAL.R3

West Sumners signed (July
2018) & West Katherines
signed (May 2019)
2022/23

not commenced

Provision of approximately 740 homes and
5 traveller pitches as well as a new local
advanced stage of
and community centre
discussion

2023/24

Timescales / progress update
Proposal stage
Series of masterplanning meetings have been held and are ongoing
between key stakeholders including EFDC, the main site promoters
(Commercial Estates Projects Ltd and Hallam Land), ECC (Highway and
Education), and HDC. A community/member engagement programme is
currently being discussed
11/10/2018 and 05/04/2019
Masterplan
Series of masterplanning meetings have been held and are ongoing
between key stakeholders including EFDC, the main site promoters (a
consortium of housebuilders including Persimmon, Taylor Wimpey and
Martin Grant Homes - West Katherines, and Manor Oak Homes - West
Sumners), ECC (Highway), and HDC. Representatives of the smaller sites
contained within Tylers Cross have recently begun to engage in the
Masterplanning process and engagement has begun with representatives
of Redwings
28/03/2019
Masterplan
High level meetings have been held between key stakeholders including
EFDC, the main site promoters (Miller Homes), ECC, HDC and PAH NHS
Trust. Communication is ongoing with three smaller land promoters
within the masterplan area regarding bringing their sites forward for
development
N/A
Masterplan
Three masterplan engagement meetings have been held between EFDC
Officers, the site promoters and the North Weald Neighbourhood Plans
Steering Group. Topic based meetings regarding land drainage and
transport have been undertaken between EFDC officers, the site
promoters and Essex County Council. A meeting between EFDC officers
and the site promoters to discuss materplan options and an engagement
strategy undertaken in May. An initial Quality review Panel was held on
14th June 2019
Masterplan
14/06/2019
Initial interdepartmental discussions between EFDC officers undertaken
in January 2019. Project brief agreed by Cabinet on 11th April 2019. The
brief is currently out to tender to recruit Masterplanners to bring the site Out to tender Masterplan not yet
forward. The masterplan will need to coordinate with the village
commenced
N/A
masterplan
Masterplan meetings have been held between EFDC officers and the site
promoters to agree the process moving forward. Engagement has been
held between all landowners and Epping Town Council. A revised
timetable of topic based meetings is currently being discussed.

N/A

Masterplan
Initial meeting held between EFDC Officers and the site promoters in
June 2018. A further meeting held in November 2018 to discuss the
process moving forward. The site promoters are currently in the process
of gathering the necessary technical work in order to progress the
production of the masterplan. A programme of topic based meetings is
due to commence in June/July.

2022/23

Masterplan

N/A
Materplan not yet commenced - awaiting adoption of the Local Plan

Jessel Green

Limes Farm

Policy P 2: LOU.R5

Policy P 7: CHIG.R6

provision of approximately 154 homes
not commenced
Regeneration led development to provide
an additional 100 homes on the site as well
as new community and local service
facilities
not commenced

2028/29

N/A

Not commenced
Masterplan not yet commenced - awaiting adoption of the Local Plan

2028/29

N/A

Not commenced

Discussions regarding a PPA and a project plan are are at an early stage
West Ongar Concept
Framework Area

Policy P 4: ONG.R1 and
ONG.R2
Provision of approximately 234 homes

initial discussions

2022/23

N/A

Concept Framework
Discussions regarding a PPA and a project plan are are at an early stage

South Nazeing Concept
Framework Area

Policy P 10: NAZE.R1,
NAZE.R3 and NAZE.R4 Provision of approximately 93 homes

initial discussions

2021/22

N/A

Concept Framework

Page 44

Appendix C - Allocated sites
Other allocated sites tracker
Delivery due to
commence (Housing
Implementation
Strategy 2019)

Development
Management Forum

Quality Review Panel Timescales / progress update

Agreed but yet to Not an allocated site for Pre application ref:
be signed
housing
EF\2018\ENQ\00219

?

16/08/18

N/A

2022/23

?

N/A

2022/23

?

?
Meeting arranged
June 2019

Redevelopment of the site to provide residential development

N/A

2028/29

?

LOU.R9

Erection of 143 mixed tenure units ranging from 3 to 5 storeys

N/A

2023/24

Land at Forest Drive, Theydon Bois
Oak Hill Green, Oak Hill Road,
Stapleford Abbotts

THYB.R1

Mixed development up 39 dwellings

2021/22

STAP.R1

Grange Court, 72 High Road, Chigwell

CHIG.R9

Residential development around 40 units and community facilities
Conversion of Listed building into 8 dwellings and extensions to
create a further six dwellings

N/A
PPA discussions
ongoing

EIA Screening Opinion
Pre application ref EF\2019\ENQ\06881
Pre application ref:
EF\2018\ENQ\01422
Pre application ref:
EF\2018\ENQ\00051
Pre application ref:
EF\2018\ENQ\00400

N/A

2021/22
Planning Permission
granted - EPF/3264/17

Pre-app ref EF\2018\ENQ\00275
Pre application ref:
EF\2019\ENQ\00330

Land at St Johns Road, Epping
Greensted Croft, Greensted Road,
Ongar

EPP.R4

comprehensive redevelopment of the site

N/A

2028/29

ONG.R5

Erection of up to 115 residential units

Agreed and signed 2022/23

Pre application (no reference)
Pre application ref:
EF\2018\ENQ\01132

Hybrid Planning Application: Phase 1 - Erection of large scale
distribution warehouse and phase 2 - Outline application for other
employment uses

Agreed but not
yet signed

2026/27

N/A

Site allocated for C2 use Planning application - EPF/1182/18 ?

?

N/A

2020/21

Planning application - EPF/1718/18 N/A

N/A

N/A

2021/22

Planning application - EPF/3174/18
refused
?

?

Planning application EPF/0499/18 N/A

N/A

02/11/2018

Site
Pre application proposals

Local Plan site Reference

Description of proposal

PPA status

Nazeing Glassworks

NAZE.E3

LOU.R4

Redevelopment of the site to provide approximately 5,000sqm of
employment space and 230 residential dwellings
Erection of 163 homes comprising of 1, 2, 3 and 4 bedroom houses
and apartments
290 Dwellings in a mix of 2, 3, 4 and 5 storey blocks together with
sports and recreation space

Land to the North of Chelmsford Road
Epping Forest College, Playing fields,
Borders Lane
Former Waltham Abbey Swimming
Pool, Roundhills, Waltham Abbey
Epping Forest College, Borders Lane,
Loughton

ONG.R4

WAL.R6

Application Stage

Meetings held between EFDC and site promoters. Considered at the
QRP
Site promoters have requested an Environmental Impact Assessment
Screening Opinion

Section 106 status

Not commenced
Not commenced
Not commenced

12/07/2019 (TBC)

Initial discussions have been held, further meetings are programmed
Initial meeting held between Essex County Council and EFDC officers discussions are ongoing.

?

?

Under consideration

Not commenced

N/A

Under consideration

Not commenced

N/A

N/A
second review
17/05/2019

Not commenced

N/A

N/A

Awaiting developers response to QRP Report
Advice sought for design amendments following granting of consent
(EPF/3264/17)

?

?

Interdepartmental meetings have taken place between Council
officers. New consultants have been comissioned to progress the site

Not commenced

?

28/03/2019

Ongoing discussions following QRP

Not commenced

26/04/18 and
11/10/18

Proposals have been the subject of two QRP meetings. A third meeting
is scheduled for July 2019. Discussions have been held with ECC and HE
to resolve issues around transport and highway matters
Not commenced

Not commenced

Not commenced

Planning applications submitted awaiting decision

Page 45

Land to the North of Dowding Way

WAL.E8

Land west of Froghall Lane, Chigwell

CHIG.R4

Planning application - EFF/1413/18 15/05/2018

Land Corner of Mill Lane / Millfield, High
Ongar
HONG.R1

Proposed assisted living development to provide apartments and
communal and support facilities
Erection of 8 three bedroom houses including new access from
Millfield, provision of parking spaces, amenity space and
landscaping

Old Epping Laundry Site, Bower Hill,
Epping

EPP.R9

Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 58 new residential
dwellings

Lake View, Moreton

MORE.T1

Application for variation of condition 10 on planning application
EPF/1356/98 (allowed on appeal) (Use of land for Showmen's
permanent quarters (relocation of existing established overcrowded
site) to enable up to 62 caravans to be located within the site).
N/A

Regularisation of
existing use

13 - 15a Alderton Hill

LOU.R14

Demolition of three dwellings and erection of new residential
development to provide 89 apartments

N/A

2028/29

Gypsey Mead, Ongar Road, Fyfield
St Thomas More Church, Willingale
Road, Loughton

FYF.R1

N/A

2022/23

Planning application - EPF/2115/18 ?
Awaiting further
information on wider
Planning application - EPF/0016/19 issues

N/A

2021/22

Planning application - EPF/0304/19 N/A

LOU.R16

Proposed development of x 24 no. new homes with associated
parking facilities, cycle stores and rubbish disposal.
Demolition of redundant church and associated buildings and
erection of 16 house, 10 flats and a new community hall

Application submitted. Outstanding issues - design/landscaping,
employment, S106 heads of terms under consideation
Not commenced
Application withdrawn from Area Planning Committee twice as a result
of a potential legal challenge by a neighbour objecting to the site
allocation in the LPSV
Not commenced
Refused on grounds design, quality of accomodation, impact on
neighbours, lack of affordable housing, parking provision and impact
on the SAC under delegated authority - 30/04/18
Not commenced

Awaiting further information
Application put on hold pending the outcome of an appeal on the
same site for a smaller scheme under reference
APP/J1535/W/18/3203410

Exisitng use

Not commenced

N/A

Issues around the viability of the scheme to be resolved
Application submitted and currently under consideration. Potentially
going to Planning Committee in July

22/11/2018

Not commenced

Not Commenced

Applications determined awaiting S106 to be signed (excluding S106 only relating to the SAC)

NAZE.R2

Outline planning application for the demolition of all existing
buildings on the site and erection of 25 dwellings

N/A

2022/23

Outline Planning application

No

No

Area Plans West Committee resolved to grant planning permission
subject to conditions and a Section 106 legal agreement on 10/04/19

Awaiting signature

256 High Road, Loughton
Proposals at appeal

LOU.R8

Demolition of existing buildings and construction of 29 apartments
in a single building of 3, 4 and 5 storeys in height, alongside
associated access, amenity space, landscaping and parking
N/A

2022/23

Planning permission granted

No

No

Planning permission has been granted subject to a Section 106
Agreement

Complete

13 - 15a Alderton Hill, Loughton

LOU.R14

Demolition of three dwellings and erection of residential
development and supporting facilities

2028/29

Public inquiry appeal: ref
APP/J1535/W/18/3203410

No

No

Initial hearings of Public Inquiry held week of 26/02/19. Further
hearings due to discuss HRA - programmed for September 2019

Not commenced

JW Fencing, Pecks Hill, Nazeing
Planning applications determined and
issued

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix D - Non allocated sites
Non-allocated sites tracker

Description of proposal

PPA status

Application Stage

Development
Quality Review
Management Forum Panel

Timescales / progress update

Section 106 status

Case officer

Proposed office, retail and residential development

N/A

Pre application ref EF\2019\ENQ\00417

?

?

pre application submitted - 10/05/19

Not commenced

Michael Johnson Development Management

New all weather pitch, alterations to function hall, improved drainage to pitches,
alterations to car park and relocation of loodlights, together with enabling
Upper Clapton Rugby & football club development comprising 9 residential dwellings
N/A

Pre application ref EF\2019\ENQ\000352

N/A

N/A

pre application submitted - 23/04/19

Not commenced

Michael Johnson Development Management

Land North of Pick Hill Waltham
Abbey EN9 3LF

123 Dwellings and open space

TBD

EF\2019\ENQ\00338

?

?

pre application submitted - 18/04/19.

Not commenced

Michael Johnson Development Management

Kingsfield Nursery, Sewardstone
Road, Waltham Abbey

9 Residential properties, associated access, ancillary development, landscaping
and public open space

N/A

Pre application ref EF\2019\ENQ\00474

N/A

N/A

pre application submitted - 29/05/19

Not commenced

Michael Johnson Development Management

11 The Shrubberies, Chigwell

Demolition of existing single dwelling house and erection of new structure
housing 9 flats across 3 floors, including dedicated off-street parking.

N/A

Pre-app ref
EF\2019\ENQ\00406

N/A

N/A

pre application submitted - 03/05/19

Not commenced

Ian Ansell

Development Management

Shernbroke Road Hostel, 1 - 6
Shernbroke Road, Waltham Abbey,
Essex, EN9 3JF

Demolition of former Shernbroke Hostel for 26 residential units in two blocks,
including private sale and affordable specialist housing.

N/A

Pre-application ref
EF\2018\ENQ\00959

N/A

N/A

Pre-application submitted 19/09/2018 and meeting held October 2018. Second
pre-app meeting held in June 2019.

Not commenced

James Rogers

Development Management

Hill House, Waltham Abbey

New build independent living scheme comprising 48 no.1 1 bed flats and 12 no. 2
bed flats, communal facilities and dining cafe aera. Landscaped ground and
parking for 30 no. cars including 3no. disabled spaces
N/A

Pre-application ref
EF\2018\ENQ\00665

04/03/2019

02/2019

pre application submitted - 19/06/2018

Not commenced

Graham Courtney Development Management

Site
Pre application submissions
Crown House, 151 High Road,
Loughton

Team responsible

Page 47

Planning applications awaiting decision

North Weald Park (Quinn)

Erection of up to 690 dwellings, including new access route, vehicle parking,
landscaping and associated infrastructure

Signed 18/05/18

Planning application EFF/1413/18

08/09/2018

27/09/2018 and
05/04/2019

Application registered, discussions with key stakeholders are ongoing. Highways
England have a holding direction on the application until September 2019
Not commenced

Sukhi Dhadwar

Development Management

Land to the north of the Nags Head
Public House, Moreton

Application for Outline Planning Permission for the erection of x 7 no. new
homes and provision of associated parking, landscaping and access
improvements.

N/A

Planning application EPF/0496/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 08/03/2019

Not commenced

Sukhi Dhadwar

Development Management

Planning application EPF/0537/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 12/04/2019

Not commenced

Alastair Prince

Development Management

Planning application ref:
EPF/0289/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 20/02/2019

Not commenced

Sukhi Dhadwar

Development Management

Broadbanks, 23 Ivy Chimneys Rad,
Epping

Change of use of existing building to form 6 no. dwellings with associated
amenity space, parking space bin store, bike store, passing bays and skip
enclosure.
N/A
Demolition of all on site stables and hardstanding; the excavation of part of the
site to reduce the levels (with the excavated material to be removed); the
provision of access road and turning head along with the erection of x 9 no.
detached and semi-detached dwellings including ancillary works and
landscaping.
N/A

Land at Gainsborough House,
Sheering Lower Road, Sheering

Change of use of Gainsborough House from offices to residential and erection of
a two and a half storey extension to create 14 no. flats and revised parking
layout.
N/A

Planning application EPF/0438/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 07/05/2019

Not commenced

Corey Isolda

Development Management

Middlebrook Industrial Estate, Hoe
Lane, Nazeing

Demolition of existing commercial buildings and erection of 20no.
detached/semi-detached dwellings and 13no. 'affordable' houses with
associated off-street parking, private gardens and landscaping

N/A

Planning application EPF/1201/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 13/06/2019

Not commenced

Sukhi Dhadwar

Development Management

Netherhouse Farm, Sewardstone
Road, Waltham Abbey

Change of use of land to a woodland cemetery and crematorium with the
erection of a meeting hall and associated buildings. (Variation to previously
approved application ref. EPF/0526/17).

N/A

Planning application EPF/0599/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 05/04/2019

Not commenced

Corey Isolda

Development Management

Pickerells Farm, Dunmow Road,
Fyfield

Page 48

Low Hill Nuresery, Sedge Green,
Nazeing

Replacement of existing caravans with permanent building containing
accommodation for 10 nursery workers.

N/A

Planning application EPF/3339/18

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 12/02/2019

Not commenced

Corey Isolda

Development Management

Woodredon House, Woodredon
Farm Lane, Waltham Abbey

Conversion and change of use of former care home including the removal of side
extensions and replacement with one storey side extension to provide x 10 no.
apartments (C3) with cart-lodge style garaging.
N/A

Planning application EPF/0729/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 23/05/2019

Not commenced

Corey Isolda

Development Management

New Barns Farm, Epping Road,
Roydon

Conversion of redundant farm buildings to seven residential (C3) units,
demolition of sections of buildings and associated works.

N/A

Planning application EPF/3120/18

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 20/03/2019

Not commenced

Corey Isolda

Development Management

Garages to the rear of nos.13-43,
Charles Street, Epping

Demolition of the existing garage buildings and the erection of 9 x 2 bedroom
mews houses, with associated landscaping, parking, bike and refuse stores.

N/A

Planning application EPF/3426/18

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 11/01/2019 being presented before planning committee
12/6/19
Not commenced

Sukhi Dhadwar

Development Management

Outline planning application for a residential development comprising up to x 52
Langley and Mile Nurseries, Crooked no. dwellings (including 40% affordable housing) with vehicular access from
Mile, Waltham Abbey
Crooked Mile, associated open space, children's play area and ancillary works.
N/A

Planning application EPF/0695/19

?

?

Application registered - 03/04/2019 - Applicant is comissioning further work on
transport and air quality.

Not commenced

Corey Isolda

Development Management

Land at Nine Ashes Road, High Ongar Erection of 8 affordable dwellings and 3 open markert dwellings

N/A

Planning application EPF/1137/18

N/A

N/A

Application registered 03/05/2018

Not commenced

Corey Isolda

Development Management

High House Farm, Stapleford Road,
Stapleford Abbotts

Construction of 27 new dwellings, including 7 affordable dwellings, with
associated infrastructure, parking, public open space and landscaping.

N/A

Planning application
EPF/2708/18

N/A

N/A

Application refused by Area Plans East Committee on 12/06/19

Not commenced

Ian Ansell

Development Management

Chigwell Garden Centre, High Road,
Chigwell

Demolition and removal of existing dwelling, storage buildings, associated
commercial structures and car park, and the erection of a 100 bedroom highquality care home with associated access, vehicle parking, hard and soft
landscaping, structural landscaping and site infrastructure.

N/A

Planning application
EPF/3195/18

N/A

17/05/2019

Application registered - 06/02/2019 - Awaiting applicants review of QRP
response, and LPSV Inspectors initial response to applicants submissions at
examination

Not commenced

Ian Ansell

Development Management

158 Queens Road, Buckhurst Hill

Erection of a new, part two and part three storey building to the rear of the
property containing 7 flats.

N/A

Planning application
EPF/0694/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 15/05/2019

Not commenced

Ian Ansell

Development Management

42 Stradbroke Drive, Chigwell

Demolition of existing house including garage and pool annex and construction
of x 10 no. residential units

N/A

Planning application
EPF/0531/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 20/05/2019

Not commenced

Ian Ansell

Development Management

Stapleford Farm, Oak Hill Road,
Stapleford Abbotts
Mossford Green Nursery, Abridge
Road, Theydon Bois

Cease existing use of land as a breakers yard, car repairs and storage with
removal of all associated buildings and replacement with x 8 no. single storey
dwellings.
Demolition of existing buildings, clearance of open storage and dwelling and
erection of 19 dwellings (8 x 3 bed, 11 x 4 bed)

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 08/02/2019

Not commenced

Ian Ansell

Development Management

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 15/01/2019

Not commenced

Ian Ansell

Development Management

Ian Ansell

Development Management

Site 2, Chigwell Grange, High Road,
Chigwell

1, 3 and 5 Stonards Hill, Epping

36 Highbridge Street, Waltham
Abbey
38 Honey Lane, Waltham Abbey

404 Fencepiece Road, Chigwell

Redevelopment to provide a new residential building comprising a total of 57
homes with associated amenity space, landscaping, car and cycle parking.
Redevelopment to form 28 no. apartments for older people, guest apartment,
communal facilities, access, car parking and landscaping (Amended application
to EPF/0947/17).

N/A

Planning application
EPF/0238/19
Planning application
EPF/3379/18

N/A

PLanning application
EPF/2155/18

?

Intended, current Application registered - 03/10/2018 - Currently in abeyance at applicants request
delay at
as they have objected to site not being allocated in LPSV and have made
applicants request representations to examination
Not commenced

N/A

EPF/0887/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 23/04/2019

Not commenced

Sukhi Dhadwar

Development Management

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 02/11/2018

Not commenced

Sukhi Dhadwar

Development Management

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 24/01/2019

Not commenced

Alatair Prince

Development Management

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 19/06/2019

Not commenced

Sukhdeep Jhooti

Development Management

N/A

site redevelopment, comprising retention of the commercial use at ground floor
level and conversion of the existing building at partial ground floor and upper
levels to provide 6 dwellings, incorporating the removal extensions; the
provision of two new build blocks to provide 4 dwellings.
N/A
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of residential apartment block to
contain 14 dwellings
N/A
Application for Outline Planning Permission for demolition of existing dwelling &
the erection of a building comprising x10 no. self-contained apartments with
associated car parking & amenities
N/A

Planning application EPF/2841/18
Planning application EPF/0140/19
Planning application EPF/1051/19

Demolition of existing public house & ancillary outbuildings & erection of three
storey building addressing High Street comprising 189 square metres of ground
floor flexible retail/financial and professional services/food and drink/drinking
establishments/hot food and takeaway (Use Classes A1/A2/A3/A4/A5) with six x
two bedroom flats and two x one bedroom flats at first and second floors, one
pair of two storey, three bedroom, semi-detached houses addressing Hemnall
Duke of Wellington PH, 36 High
Street and formation of one altered vehicle accesses onto High Street and one
Street, Epping
new access onto Half Moon Lane to serve parking and manoeuvring areas.
N/A
Applications determined awaiting S106 to be signed
Demolition of bungalow and erection of two, two storey linked blocks to provide
4 x 1 bedroomed flats and 2 x 2 bedroomed flats with associated car parking, bin
69 Farm Hill Road, Waltham Abbey
and bike stores, amenity and landscaping
N/A
1 Tomswood Road, Chigwell

Demolition of existing and proposed apartment block (seven flats)
Demolition of part of existing glasshouses; change of use and conversion of
Tylers Cross Nursery, Epping Road,
remainder to form 20 units in mixed light industrial and storage use (Class
Nazeing
B1/B8).
Planning applications with decision issued
Proposed conversion of office building B1 to 12 residential apartments C3 and
6 Church Street, Waltham Abbey
installation of 8 x velux windows in the roof slopes.
proposals at appeal

Planning application EPF/1047/19

N/A

N/A

Application registered - 20/06/2019

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Planning permission granted subject to Section 106 (SAC recreation and air
quality)
Planning permission granted subject to Section 106 (SAC recreation and air
quality)

Not commenced

Sukhvinder
Dhadwar

Development Management

In progress

Corey Isolda

Development Management

In progress

Ian Ansell

Development Management

N/A

Planning application EPF/3381/18
Planning application
EPF/0840/18

N/A

Planning application EPF/1619/18

N/A

N/A

Planning permission granted subject to Section 106 (SAC recreation and air
quality)

In progress

Corey Isolda

Development Management

N/A

Planning application EPF/0741/18

N/A

N/A

Decision issued, planning permission granted

Complete

Corey Isolda

Development Management

69 Church Hill, Loughton

Demolition of the existing bungalow and replacement with a block of 10
apartments.

N/A

Written reps appeal:
APP/J1535/W/19/3224739 N/A

N/A

Awaiting decision

N/A

Sukhi Dhadwar

Development Management

60 Traps Hill, Loughton

The demolition of an existing 2-3 storey detached house and the development of
a new 2-3 storey building consisting of 7 flats (2 x 1 bed, 5 x 3 bed) and including
9 no. car parking spaces, cycle stores and bin stores.
N/A

Written reps appeal:
APP/J1535/W/18/3209460 N/A

N/A

The appeal is in abeyance at the applicants request, pending progress on SAC
matters

N/A

Ian Ansell

Development Management

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix E - Quality Review Panel
Quality Review Panel tracker

Page 51

Scheme reviewed
Land North of Dowding Way
HGGT Spatial Vision
HGGT Design Charter
Gilston Masterplan
HGGT Sustainable Transport Corridor Study
Nazeing Glassworks
North Weald Park
Land North of Dowding Way
Latton Priory
HGGT Design Guide
HGGT Transport Strategy
13-15a Alderton Hill
Gypsy Mead site
Land at Oak Hill Road
Harlow Town Centre AAP
Hill House
Gilston Village 7
Gilston River Crossings
287-291 High Street, Epping
Land at Greensted Road
Water Lane
Latton Priory
North Weald Park
HGGT Healthy Town Framework
Chigwell Nursery Site
Land at Oak Hill Road
Harlow Town Centre AAP
North Weald Bassett Masterplan

Epping Forest Dsitrict Council (EFDC) /
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town (HGGT)
review
EFDC
HGGT
HGGT
HGGT
HGGT
EFDC
EFDC
EFDC
EFDC / HGGT
HGGT
HGGT
EFDC
EFDC
EFDC
HGGT
EFDC
HGGT
HGGT
EFDC
EFDC
EFDC / HGGT
EFDC / HGGT
EFDC
HGGT
EFDC
EFDC
HGGT
EFDC

Pre-application/
Application/ Other
Pre-application
Other
Other
Pre-application
Other
Pre-application
Application
Application
Pre-application
Other
Other
Application
Pre-application
Pre-application
Other
Pre-application
Pre-application
Pre-application
Pre-application
Pre-application
Pre-application
Pre-application
Application
Other
Application
Pre-application
Other
Pre-application

Date of review
26/04/2018
24/05/2018
19/07/2018
19/07/2018
26/07/2018
16/08/2018
27/09/2018
11/10/2018
11/10/2018
11/10/2018
11/10/2018
02/11/2018
22/11/2018
14/12/2018
11/01/2019
24/01/2019
22/02/2019
22/02/2019
28/03/2019
28/03/2019
28/03/2019
05/04/2019
05/04/2019
03/05/2019
17/05/2019
17/05/2019
17/05/2019
14/06/2019

Scheme Type
Commercial Site
Strategy document
Strategy document
Strategic Masterplan
Evidence-base document
Mixed use masterplan
Mixed use masterplan
Commercial Site
Strategic Masterplan
Strategy document
Strategy document
Specialist Housing
Housing (under 50 units)
Housing (under 50 units)
Policy document
Specialist Housing
Strategic Masterplan
Infrastructure
Housing (under 50 units)
Housing (50+ units)
Strategic Masterplan
Strategic Masterplan
Mixed use masterplan
Strategy document
Specialist Housing
Housing (under 50 units)
Policy document
Strategic Masterplan

Local Plan reference
WAL.E8
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
NAZE.E3
Not allocated
WAL.E8
SP 5.1
n/a
n/a
LOU.R11
FYF.R1
STAP.R1
n/a
Previous Outline application
n/a
n/a
EPP.R10
ONG.R5
SP 5.2
SP 5.1
Not allocated
n/a
Not allocated
STAP.R1
n/a
NWB.R1-R5, NWB.T1

Type of review
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Second Formal
Formal
Chair's Review
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Formal
Chair's Review
Formal
Formal
Second Formal
Second Formal
Chair's Review
Formal
Second Formal
Chair's Review
Formal

Report: Confidential/
On website
Confidential
On website
On website
n/a
Confidential
Confidential
On website
Confidential
Confidential
On website
Confidential
On website
Confidential
n/a
Confidential
Confidential
n/a
n/a
Confidential
Confidential
Confidential
Confidential
On website
Confidential
On website
Confidential
n/a
Confidential

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Report to the Cabinet
Report reference:
Date of meeting:

C-007-2018/19
11 July 2019

Subject:

Delivering Infrastructure in the District:
Developer Contributions Strategy

Responsible Officer:

Alison Blom-Cooper (01992 564066).

Democratic Services:

Adrian Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
(1) That the Delivering Infrastructure in the District: Developer Contributions
Strategy attached as Appendix A be agreed; and
(2) That the mechanisms for Member involvement to support the delivery of
infrastructure be noted and;
(3) The new regulations to lift the pooling restrictions for S106 contributions and
a requirement to produce an annual infrastructure funding statement from
December 2020 be noted.
Executive Summary:
The growth proposed in the Local Plan Submission Version (currently at examination) will
result in requirements to provide additional infrastructure, services and facilities. The
requirements have been identified in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan and supporting
documents. The Council needs to put in place guidance to support the delivery of
infrastructure and the processes for achieving the infrastructure. The guidance provides
details on how, what and when planning obligations will be used and the approach to
viability for proposed sites in the District to determine the appropriate level of developer
contributions to be sought.
The Council and Land Promoters have a responsibility, through the planning process, to
manage the impact of the growth and ensure that any harm caused, as the result of
development, is mitigated and necessary infrastructure is provided. The Council therefore
expects new development to contribute to site related and other infrastructure needs.
Reasons for Proposed Decision:
The strategy puts in place appropriate guidance to ensure consistent delivery of
infrastructure in the District and sets out the approach and the arrangements required to
ensure the sustainability and long-term stewardship of the development. Once agreed this
document will provide a framework for the consideration of proposals to ensure that the
appropriate infrastructure is realised in accordance with the policies in the Local Plan.

Page 53

Other Options for Action:
Report:
1.

The purpose of the strategy is to set out the Councils approach, policies and
procedures in respect of delivering infrastructure in the District to support the growth
identified in the Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV 2017), Epping Forest District
Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) and Harlow and Gilston Infrastructure
Delivery Plan.

2.

The Council and Developers have a responsibility through the planning process to
manage the impact of the growth and ensure that any harm caused by the
development is mitigated and that the necessary infrastructure is provided. The
strategy will ensure that a coordinated approach is taken, through the planning
process using a combination of Planning Conditions (site/development related) and
Planning Obligations to secure developer contributions or works in kind e.g. S106
agreements (site/development related).

3.

The strategy identifies where Planning Obligations will be used when the impact of
the proposed development cannot be dealt with by planning conditions and the
infrastructure requirements relates specifically to the development. The purpose of a
Planning Obligation is to make development ‘acceptable’ in planning terms which
might otherwise be unacceptable development were only the use of planning
conditions to be imposed. Used properly, Planning Obligations can significantly
increase the quality of development. All planning contributions from new
developments must be sought for a specific purpose and this purpose should be
finalised before planning permission is issued.

4.

Where there are competing priorities for the types of obligations that may be
required the strategy sets out that engagement at the Local Plan Officer Working
Group and Members must be undertaken to establish a way forward. The type of
developer contributions that will be included in the S106 agreement will be identified
in the Heads of Terms. The proposed infrastructure to be provided will be reviewed
by Members during the Pre-Application, Masterplanning and Concept Framework
stage through regular reports to the Local Plan Cabinet Committee or Cabinet.

5.

The purpose of the IDP’s is to set out the infrastructure that will be required to
deliver the planned level of housing and employment growth in the district to 2033.
The infrastructure types that might be expected to be delivered, given the types of
development provided by the Local Plan, are included at Appendix A of the Strategy
(see page 18). These reflect the Infrastructure requirements identified in the IDP.

6.

The role of use of Planning Conditions is included at Appendix B of the strategy (see
page 23) and when used properly, conditions can enhance the quality of
development proposals to proceed where it would otherwise have been necessary to

Page 54

refuse planning permission, by mitigating the adverse effects of the development.
7.

The Councils approach to viability for contributions in accordance with national
policy is included at Appendix D of the strategy (See page 28). The need to deliver
strategic infrastructure items across the District and Garden Town through coordinated contributions of land and/or infrastructure costs, mean that it is important
to adopt a consistent and transparent approach to viability assessment.

Legal framework – new provisions to remove pooling restrictions and
introduce a requirement to publish infrastructure funding statements
8.

The legislative context for the use of Planning Obligations and section 106
Agreements is included at Appendix C (see page 25). New CIL Regulations have
been laid before parliament and will come into force on 1 September 2019.

9.

The restrictions on the ‘pooling’ of section 106 planning obligations to fund
infrastructure will be removed. Local authorities are currently allowed to pool no
more than five developer contributions to fund a single infrastructure project. The
regulations remove any upper limit on the number of developer contributions that
can be pooled.

10.

The regulations also introduce a requirement for councils to publish "infrastructure
funding statements". These statements will replace existing Regulation 123 lists and
should include details of how much money has been raised through developer
contributions and how it has been spent. Statements must be published on local
authority websites at least once a year with the first statement to be published by 31
December 2020.

11.

In addition, the Council will be allowed to charge a fee through section 106
agreements to contribute towards the cost of monitoring and reporting on developer
contributions. The regulations state that this fee should be "fair" and "reasonable"
and reflect the authority’s estimate of the cost of monitoring.

Resource Implications:
The successful delivery of Infrastructure in the District and Harlow and Gilston Garden
Town will require a significant commitment of Officer time. It has been agreed that the use
of PPA’s to enable cost recovery for this resource commitment. The Strategy also includes
payment of a contribution towards the cost of monitoring the compliance for s106
Agreements.
Legal and Governance Implications:
The Strategy has been developed in accordance with Government Policy (NPPF) and
Planning Law, Local Plan policies, the Epping Forest District Infrastructure Delivery Plan

Page 55

(2017), Topic Papers and associated addendum and Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
IDP and Viability Assessment.
When adopted this document will provide appropriate guidance to ensure consistent
delivery of infrastructure in the District, set out the approach and the arrangements
required for the consideration of masterplans, concept frameworks and other proposals for
development in the District along with the sustainability and long-term stewardship of
development. The Strategy will be subject to monitoring and review and updated as
necessary to ensure it remains consistent with relevant Legislation, National Guidance,
Local Plan policy and reflect the Epping Forest District IDP.

Safer, Cleaner, and Greener Implications:
The Local Plan contains a policy designed to promote the notion of making good places to
live, work and visit. This will include safer by design principles, sustainable development,
the provision of alternatives to the car, energy efficiency and environmental considerations
as well as sustainable drainage systems and quality green infrastructure. Strategic
Masterplans and Concept Frameworks and the delivery of other sites will be the
mechanism for these place-making measures.
Consultation Undertaken:
The strategy has been developed with the engagement of officers through the Local Plan
Officer Working Group and members at a workshop on 28 March 2019.
Background Papers:













EB114 - Local Plan Submission Version December 2017
EB1101A – Epping Forest District Council Infrastructure Delivery Plan Part A
Report
EB1101B – Epping Forest District Council Infrastructure Delivery Plan Part B
Report
EB1101C_Infrastructure-Delivery-Topic-Paper_FINAL_OCT2018-1.pdf
EB1101E-EFDC-Topic-Paper-Addendum-Education-and-Highways-ApportionmentEFDC-April-2019.pdf
EB1101Ei-IDP-Topic-Paper-Apportionment-Appendix-A-Highways-EFDC-April2019.xlsx
EB1101Eii-IDP-Topic-Paper-Apportionment-Appendix-B-Education-EFDC-April2019.xlsx
EB1107-ECCs-Developers-Guide-to-Infrastructure-Contributions-2016.pdf
EB1418-Harlow-and-Gilston-Garden-Town-Infrastructure-Delivery-Plan-HDHPlanning-Development-and-Arup-April-2019.pdf
EB1418A-Harlow-and-Gilston-Garden-Town-Infrastructure-Delivery-PlanAppendix-A-HDH-Planning-Development-Ltd-and-Arup-April-2019.pdf
EB1417-Harlow-and-Gilston-Garden-Town-Strategic-Viability-Assessment-HDHPlanning-Development-Ltd-and-Arup-2019.pdf
EB1417A-Harlow-and-Gilston-Garden-Town-Strategic-Viability-AssessmentAppendices-HDH-Planning-Development-Ltd-and-Arup-2019.pdf

Page 56

Risk Management:
If the Council were not to take a pro-active stance on the delivery of Masterplans and
major applications arising from the Local Plan, there is a real risk of not meeting the
Housing Delivery Test and/or development occurring of a type that does not extract
maximum value for the provision of social infrastructure and poor quality development may
occur.

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

Equality Impact Assessment for 11 July 2019 report to Cabinet on Delivering Infrastructure in
the District

Section 1: Identifying details
Your function, service area and team: Planning Policy, Planning
If you are submitting this EqIA on behalf of another function, service area or team, specify the
originating function, service area or team: N/A
Title of policy or decision: Delivering Infrastructure in the District: Developer Contributions
Strategy
Officer completing the EqIA: Tel: Alison Blom-Cooper
ablomcooper@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Email:

Date of completing the assessment: 28 June 2019

Section 2: Policy to be analysed
2.1

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an existing policy, practice or
project? Yes – new guidance

2.2

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the policy (or decision):
The main aims of the report are to agree the Strategy and note member
engagement. The strategy is necessary in order to ensure a coordinated approach
to the mitigation of new development within the Local Plan that requires the
provision of infrastructure, services, facilities identified in the IDP and associated
documents and also implement the recommendation in the s106 Agreement Audit
Report 2018/19 and manage processes that have already been agreed by Cabinet.
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie decommissioning or commissioning
a service)?
To agree the necessary processes to implement the Local Plan, IDp and
associated documents.

2.3

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
 employees
Agreement of the strategy will provide guidance to Officers and members on how,
when and what planning obligations will operate in the District.
Will the policy or decision influence how organisations operate?
The decisions will provide guidance to Officers and members on how, when and
what planning obligations will operate in the District.

Page 59
Equality Impact Assessment for Delivering Infrastructure to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

2.4

Will the policy or decision involve substantial changes in resources?
No – The Council has already employed a Strategic Infrastructure and Planning
Obligations Officer in the Implementation Team.

2.5

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the Council’s other policies and
how, if applicable, does the proposed policy support corporate outcomes?
The decision supports the implementation of policies within the Council’s Local Plan
and the Infrastructure Delivery Plan, the adoption of which is a key corporate
priority as set out in the Council Plan.

Page 60
Equality Impact Assessment for Delivering Infrastructure to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

Section 3: Evidence/data about the user population and
consultation1
As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected
which will support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage,
customer satisfaction surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national,
regional and local data sources).
3.1

What does the information tell you about those groups identified?
The decisions requested will inform the delivery and implementation of the delivery
of infrastructure identified in the IDP. Given that the focus of this report relates to the
measures necessary to implement the Local Plan, which has itself been subject to
detailed EqIA, it is not considered that the recommendations within this report will
give rise to actual or likely adverse impacts to groups identified as potentially being
affected.

3.2

Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision you want to implement? If so, what were their views and how have
their views influenced your decision?
Yes – through member engagement and officer consultation.

3.3

If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected
by the policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation
or provide reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:
N/A

Page 61
Equality Impact Assessment for Delivering Infrastructure to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

Section 4: Impact of policy or decision
Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you now
know.
Description of impact

Nature of impact
Positive, neutral, adverse
(explain why)

Age

None

N/A

Disability

None

N/A

Gender

None

N/A

Gender reassignment

None

N/A

Marriage/civil partnership

None

N/A

Pregnancy/maternity

None

N/A

Race

None

N/A

Religion/belief

None

N/A

Sexual orientation

None

N/A

Page 62
Equality Impact Assessment for Delivering Infrastructure to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

Extent of impact
Low, medium, high
(use L, M or H)

Section 5: Conclusion
Tick
Yes/No as
appropriate
 No

5.1
Does the EqIA in
Section 4 indicate that
the policy or decision
would have a medium
or high adverse impact
on one or more
equality groups?

Yes

No actual or likely adverse impacts have come to light.

Page 63
Equality Impact Assessment for Delivering Infrastructure to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

If ‘YES’, use the action
plan at Section 6 to describe
the adverse impacts
and what mitigating actions
you could put in place.

Section 6: Action plan to address and monitor adverse impacts
What are the potential
adverse impacts?

What are the mitigating actions?

Page 64
Equality Impact Assessment for Delivering Infrastructure to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

Date they will be
achieved.

Section 7: Sign off
I confirm that this initial analysis has been completed appropriately.
(A typed signature is sufficient.)
Signature of Head of Service: Alison Blom-Cooper

Date: 28 June 2019

Signature of person completing the EqIA: Amanda Apcar

Date: 27 June 2019

Advice
Keep your director informed of all equality & diversity issues. We recommend that you forward
a copy of every EqIA you undertake to the director responsible for the service area. Retain a
copy of this EqIA for your records. If this EqIA relates to a continuing project, ensure this
document is kept under review and updated, eg after a consultation has been undertaken.

Page 65
Equality Impact Assessment for Delivering Infrastructure to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Delivering Infrastructure in the District:
Developer Contributions Strategy
Epping Forest District Council’s requirements
June 2019

1|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 67

1.

Introduction

2.

Local Plan Submission Version 2017

3.

Status

4.

Delivery Mechanisms

5.

The Council’s Approach to Delivery infrastructure: The use of planning
agreements.

6.

Drafting Planning Obligations.

7.

Processes

8.

Monitoring and delivery of s106 Planning Obligations

9.

Parish Councils

10.

Neighbourhood Plans

Appendix A: Infrastructure Types
Appendix B: The Role of Planning Conditions
Appendix C: Legislative Context
Appendix D: The Council’s approach to Viability
Appendix E: Notification Form
Appendix F: S106 precedent/ Nomination Agreement and Unilateral Undertaking Special
Area of Conservation ‘(SAC’)
Appendix G: Useful references

2|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 68

1.

Introduction

1.1

The purpose of this document is to set out the Councils approach, policies and
procedures in respect of delivering infrastructure in the District to support the growth
identified in the Local Plan Submission Version (LPSV 2017) and Epping Forest District
Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP).

1.2

Almost all development has some impact on the impact for infrastructure, services and
amenities – or benefits from it – so it is only fair that such development pays a share of
the cost. The aim of this document os to provide guidance to support the delivery of
infrastructure on what, how, and when planning obligations will operate in Epping Forest
District. Specifically, it will:

3.3



Set out the types of planning obligations that may be sought to meet the
infrastructure requirements to deliver the planned level of housing and employment
growth in the District, as set out in the Local Plan with site specific requirements in
Appendix 6 and supporting Infrastructure Delivery Plan.



Support the approach to apportionment, prioritisation of S106 contributions towards
projects (highways/education/open space etc.) and thresholds for securing S106
contributions set out in the IDP topic papers & Addendum.



Provide transparency in the procedures for securing planning obligations;



Where there are competing priorities, set out the approach to engagement with the
Local Plan Officers Working Group/Members around S106 contributions and on/off
site infrastructure.



To set out the approach to viability for contributions in accordance with national
policy.



To support the SAC mitigation strategy in terms of air quality and recreational
pressure on Epping Forest.

It should be noted that there may need to be other obligations, not covered in this
document, which may be required, and arise on a case by case basis, to mitigate
against specific site development impacts. Some development schemes may have wide
ranging impacts, which require more significant measures to be put in place to address
them, these will be discussed in detail at the pre-application stage, where relevant.

3|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 69

2.

The Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version 2017

2.1

The Council’s Local Plan was submitted for Examination in September 2018. It sets out
the policies guiding growth over some 11,400 additional homes and 10,800 jobs over in
the District over the plan period 2011-2033. It is anticipated that the local plan will be
adopted by the Council in late 2019.

2.2

This growth will result in requirements to provide local infrastructure, services and
facilities which have been identified in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan and supporting
documents. The Council and Land Promoters have a responsibility, through the planning
process, to manage the impact of the growth and ensure that any harm caused as a
result of development is mitigated and necessary infrastructure is provided. The Council
therefore expects new development to contribute to site related and other infrastructure
needs.

2.3

The over-arching reasoning and justification for planning obligations is set out in the
Local Plan strategic objectives as well as policies of the Local Plan. Appendix 6 sets out
the site-specific requirements for allocated sites outside the masterplan areas.

2.4

The starting point for identifying what infrastructure is required is the Epping Forest
District Infrastructure Delivery Plan (‘IDP’), the Topic Paper and addendum. The ‘IDP’
draws on work undertaken by the Council to support the local plan, to align and update
the information. It is a live document that identifies the levels of infrastructure required to
meet the needs of the growing and expanding population. It will be updated to take
account of the evolving plan making development and required changes in infrastructure
provision.

2.5

The IDP Topic Paper provides more information on infrastructure delivery, as well as a
more general update on the work undertaken since the IDP was published. It sets out a
high-level framework for apportionment and pooling arrangements to be taken forward
for key infrastructure (highways, public transport, education, health, and open space,
sports, green infrastructure and community facilities) but does not go as far as grouping
developments into specific ‘pools’. The Topic paper also provides information on those
external funding sources outlined in the IDP, including the work currently ongoing to
progress and secure funding, the risks of funding not being in place and contingency
measures.

2.6

The Addendum to the Topic Papers will demonstrate how required upgrade and
implementation of schemes might be apportioned to specific sites and how contributions
might be sought. Addendum papers on Education and Highways have been published
and Sport Infrastructure is currently being produced.

4|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 70

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
2.7

Three strategic sites identified in the Local Plan are within the Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town. A Harlow and Gilston Garden Town IDP and viability study has been
published to support infrastructure delivery in the Garden Town and will form the basis of
requirements for the Water Lane, Latton Priory and East of Harlow masterplan areas.

3.

Status

3.1

When adopted this document will provide appropriate guidance to ensure consistent
delivery of infrastructure in the District, set out the approach and the arrangements
required for the consideration of masterplans, concept frameworks and other proposals
for development in the District along with the sustainability and long-term stewardship of
development. This document will be subject to monitoring and review (see Section 14)
and updated, as and when necessary, to ensure it remains consistent with relevant
Legislation, National Guidance, Local Plan policy and reflect the Epping Forest District
IDP.

3.2

This guidance sets out how the Council intends to ensure that a consistent approach is
adopted to delivering the necessary infrastructure to support the growth together with
other services and the arrangements required to ensure the sustainability and long-term
stewardship of the development.

4.

Delivery Mechanisms

4.1

The Council expects new development to contribute to site related and wider
infrastructure needs (see Appendix A for a list of infrastructure) through a combination of
the following mechanisms:

4.2



Planning conditions (site/development related);



Planning Obligations to secure developer contributions or works in kind (s106
agreements and/or site/development related).



External funding from Government or other sources e.g. Housing Infrastructure
Fund (HIF) bid, Road Investment Strategy (RIS) 1 & 2.

Where there are competing priorities for the types of obligations that may be required
this document sets out the process for engagement at the Local Plan Officer Working
Group and liaising with members to establish a way forward.

5|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 71

4.3

The type of developer contributions that will be included in the S106 agreement will be
identified in the Heads of Terms. The proposed infrastructure to be provided will be
reviewed by Members during the Pre-Application, Masterplanning and Concept
Framework stage through regular reports to the Local Plan Cabinet Committee or
Cabinet.

What are Planning Obligations?
4.2

Planning Obligations will be used where the identified impact of the proposed
development cannot be dealt with by planning conditions and the infrastructure
requirements relates specifically to the development. A ‘Planning Obligation’ is a legal
document made pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Act 1990 (as
amended) also often referred to as a ‘S106 Agreement’. This may take the form of an
agreement between the Local Planning Authorities (‘LPA’), the developer and any
persons with an interest in the land or a unilateral undertaking by the developer given to
the LPA.

4.3

The purpose of a Planning obligation is to make development ‘acceptable’ in planning
terms which might otherwise be unacceptable development were only the use of
planning conditions to be imposed. The outcome of the use of planning obligations
should be that the proposed development is brought into compliance with the Local Plan
policies and that any development specific works are undertaken satisfactorily. Used
properly, planning obligations can significantly increase the quality of development and
can do this through:
 prescribing the nature of the development (e.g. by requiring a proportion of affordable
housing);
 securing a contribution from the developer to compensate or re-provide for loss or
damage created by a development (e.g. through the transfer of land, the requiring of
a cash payment to be made, or new habitats to be created etc.) and
 mitigating a development’s impact on the locality (e.g. through securing of
environmental improvements and the provision of both on an off-site infrastructure
and facilities to serve the development such as new roads or junction improvements
which, without the proposed development taking place, would not necessarily be
required).

4.4

Whilst planning obligations can secure benefits capable of mitigating the adverse
impacts of development, they cannot however, be used to make a bad application good
where, for example, a scheme does not comply with the spatial strategy and land use
principals of the Local Plan. Planning obligations are governed by the fundamental
6|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 72

principle that planning permission may not be bought or sold, and they cannot be used
to secure a share in the profit from development.

4.5

All planning contributions from new developments must be sought for a specific purpose
and this purpose should be finalised before planning permission is issued. To manage
this within the tight timescales (and as a starting point for negotiating specific
contributions) the Council has a set of agreed, evidence based schedules in the Epping
Forest District IDP that are required to mitigate the impact of the new development.

4.6

Contributions can be financial or non-financial in nature. Opportunities may therefore
arise for provision 'in-kind', where the developer either builds or supplies whatever is
required to fulfil the obligation negotiated as part of the planning application. Situations
may arise where in-kind provision is preferred, e.g. In cases where finding a suitable site
for a facility proves challenging.

4.7

However, from time to time and dependent on the specific nature of a development
proposal, contributions may be required towards the ongoing costs of running a facility
or providing a service, examples of which include the maintenance of parks and areas of
open space. This may be necessary to ensure that the specific impacts created by a
development are addressed.

4.8

S106 developer contributions are not going to fund all the infrastructure needs for the
planned growth in the District. The Council will also need to secure external funding to
pay for some of the strategic infrastructure through sources such as Road Investment
strategy (RIS) i.e. funding the construction of improvements to Junction 7 & 7a of the
M11 and the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF Bid) that could fund river stort crossings
to open up development in Gilston.

7|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 73

The Council’s Approach to Delivering infrastructure
5.

The use of Planning Agreements

5.1

The Council expect applicants to undertake the correct process when negotiating,
preparing and completing planning obligations to ensure that applications and
obligations are dealt with in a timely and efficient manner. It is essential that the
applicant and council engage in pre-application discussions as early as possible.

5.2

The main stages of the procedure are:


Stage 1: Strategic Sites – Masterplan /Concept framework; or
Allocation Sites outside masterplanning - Pre-application;



Stage 2: Submission of the planning application (including accompanying
proposed Heads of Terms or draft planning obligations); and



Stage 3: Appraisal, validation and agreement of a related planning obligation

Stage 1: Pre-Application Stage
5.3

The Council will consider each proposed development on its merits against relevant
policy and other material planning considerations, and will negotiate and secure
planning obligations on a site-by-site and application-by-application basis. The starting
point will be identification of requirements in the Epping Forest District Local Plan
including Appendix 6 and supporting evidence including the Infrastructure Delivery Plan,
Topic papers and associated Addendum.

a) Strategic allocations
5.4

Where appropriate the Local Plan has identified the strategic sites allocated which will
need to be subject to masterplanning – either through a strategic masterplan or concept
framework. Any planning proposals for these allocations will need to be supported by an
endorsed masterplan (see The Strategic Masterplanning Briefing Note and Concept
Framework Note, - this was agreed by the Council on 18 October 2018). This sets out
the process which will need to be followed and the Council must endorse a developer’s
masterplan before they can make a formal planning application. Masterplans are high
level documents, which sets out what the Council expects from a new development
including the provision of the necessary infrastructure. Masterplans will help well
8|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 74

designed new communities and make sure the development delivers what the area
needs, while giving the developer some flexibility.
5.5

The Strategic Masterplanning Briefing Note and Concept Framework Note provide
guidance on the nature and extent of the community and stakeholder engagement that
the Council will expect each Masterplan and Concept Framework to undertake, whilst
also setting out the key principles that should be followed. Members will be expected to
play a key role throughout this process, and regular briefings will be held. It is not
proposed to utilise the Council’s Development Management Forum through the
preparation of the Masterplan itself, though the forum will have an important role once
proposals are firmed up at pre-application stage.

5.6

Endorsement of the Strategic Masterplans and Concept Frameworks (and potential
adoption as SPDs) is an essential stage if the documents are to be material planning
considerations against which future planning applications will be assessed. The Local
Plan makes it clear that sites identified as requiring a Strategic Masterplan must have the
Masterplan completed and endorsed by the Council prior to the granting of a planning
permission. The Strategic Masterplans and Concept Frameworks therefore set the
fundamental parameters that each subsequent planning application will need to adhere to.

5.7

The Strategic Masterplans and Concept Frameworks are firmly linked to the timely
delivery of high quality development and infrastructure, a key requirement of central
government policy and the Local Plan. It will therefore be critical that the Council can
move quickly and can commit to endorsing a finalised masterplan in a timely manner.

5.8

The Council’s Local Plan Cabinet Committee (LPCC) or Cabinet Committee will approve
draft Strategic Masterplans and Concept Frameworks for consultation. The
Implementation Team will provide regular updates to the committee on progress in the
preparation of masterplans and concept frameworks to ensure that Members are kept
fully up-to-date with the progression of each plan. Upon completion of the final draft
document for consultation, it is proposed that this is taken to the LPCC to agree
consultation on the draft Strategic Masterplan.

5.9

Following a six weeks consultation period, and subsequent amendments made to
address issues arising, the Masterplan will then be taken to Cabinet for formal
endorsement as a material planning consideration. The Cabinet may also adopt the
masterplan as a SPD, should this be required, after the adoption of the Local Plan. The
process would be broadly similar for a Concept Framework, however owing to their
smaller scale, it is envisaged that these will only be taken to LPCC once for final
endorsement only.
b) Non strategic allocations or proposals

5.10

For other allocations, officers should notify the relevant internal Officers when they
receive a pre-application request for developments of 6 units or more units or on a
9|Page
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 75

site of more than 0.2 hectares to enable them to have the necessary in-put into the
discussions and identify the infrastructure requirements at an early stage. Consideration
should be given as to whether or not infrastructure requirements for the proposed
development should be considered by the Local Plan Officer Working Group or the
Quality Review Panel and/or reported to members at this stage.
5.11

Where development sites are subdivided or developed in phases to ensure that the
separate planning applications fall below any specified policy threshold for which
obligations may be sought, the Council will, as far as possible, consider sites in their
totality. Similarly, proposals that are judged not to make the best use of land, so as to
result in underdevelopment, will be resisted and a revised scheme will be sought.

Stage 1 - Pre-Application Discussions
5.12

Applicants, agents and developers are encouraged to seek pre-application advice prior
to the formal submission of major development proposals within the district. The preapplication process offers the opportunity for the applicant and Council officers to
discuss, without prejudice, the acceptability of the proposed scheme. This will enable
informed and detailed discussions on the types of obligations to be entered, and further
discussions can be undertaken relating to ‘in kind’ either on or off site, or if a financial
contribution is needed. If discussions for draft heads of terms fail to result in an
agreement, the applicant will be invited to provide justification and alternatives for
consideration, and assessment by the Council.

5.13

A strong emphasis is placed on the increasing importance of pre-application discussions
and the planning process as a method of creating a faster, more responsive and
transparent planning system. Pre-application advice is provided by planning officers,
which outlines how the Council are likely to determine any subsequent planning
application, and any changes that are likely to be needed, to give development schemes
the best chance of being granted a planning permission. The service provided by the
Council is set out on the website. For larger schemes the Council will generally expect a
Planning Performance Agreement to be used – see
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/pre-app-chargingscheme-june-2018.pdf

5.13

The guidance given at this stage is informal advice and does not bind the Council in any
future decision it makes. However, where pre-application advice is obtained and
incorporated into any development scheme including the infrastructure provision this is
likely to ensure a more efficient processing of any subsequent application. The benefits
to seeking pre-application advice include:
 an opportunity to understand how the Council’s policies will be applied to the

proposed development
10 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 76

 identify at an early stage where there is a need for specialist input, for

example regarding listed buildings, trees, landscape, noise, transport, contaminated
land, ecology or archaeology issues.
 Identify any planning obligations that will be required to mitigate development
including infrastructure requirements
 Confirm any consultation requirements including whether the proposed development
should go to the Quality Review Panel, Development Management Forum or be
reported to members at an early stage

Stage 2: Application Stage
5.14

Where it is identified that infrastructure provision will be required to support the
application, the information set out in the local validation checklist and all agreed
information identified at the pre-application stage should be submitted with the planning
application.

5.15

In addition to the draft Heads of terms, developers should also submit with their planning
application the necessary title information. The Council should also be notified and
informed of any changes in land ownership throughout the application process. Planning
Obligations are registered as a Local Land Charge and will remain on the register until
they have been discharged.

Stage 3 – Approval and agreement of a planning obligation
5.16

When the Council resolves to grant planning permission, either by way of delegated
powers or Committee decision, the resolution may be subject to the completion of the
planning obligations. The planning obligations will usually need to be formally completed
and sealed within an appropriate timescale (3 months as standard) prior to the decision
notice being issued and the obligations being placed on the local land charges register.

5.17

If the S106 Agreement is not formally completed by the end of the 3 months, and the
Council and developer have not agreed an extension to this period, the application will
automatically default to a refusal (this trigger being included in the recommendations of
the Planning Sub-Committee report or the planning Officer report if made under
delegated authority).

6.

Drafting the S106 Agreement

6.1

The legal costs of drafting a S106 Agreement are an impact of a development, one
which the Council would not have to bear if the development were not to take place.
Therefore, the developer will be asked to cover the Council's legal and associated costs
incurred with the negotiation, preparation and completion of the planning agreement, the
11 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 77

cost of the transfer of any land, as well as payment of a contribution towards the cost of
monitoring for compliance.
6.2

In terms of the approach to the drafting of the Section 106 Agreement, the Council have
appointed Legal Advisors to develop a standard format agreement (the Template
Agreement) (Appendix F) which will be used for the new Garden Communities and the
basis of the Councils’ template for development in the Epping Forest District. Whilst there
may be some minor variations in agreements, reflecting the particular requirements of
individual developments, the aim will be to ensure a consistency of approach as far as
practicable.

6.3

Dependent upon any site-specific requirements and the nature and scale of the
development, matters to be dealt with in the Template Section 106 agreement may
include:
I.

A delivery table identifying key infrastructure provision and delivery phasing;

II.

Requirements for affordable housing including number of homes, tenure and how
and when these will be provided;

III.

Requirements for all other provisions including but not limited to education, health,
community and leisure facilities including how and when these will be provided;

IV.

The package of measures intended to achieve the 60/40% mode share target for
the Garden Town of active healthy sustainable travel and measures for monitoring
and managing the 60/40%% mode share target, including any interim phased
targets (on the understanding that the general approach should be to establish this
mode share from the outset in order to encourage and support behavioural change
as new residents arrive). Provision should also be made for taking further
measures should these be necessary to address any shortfall against these
targets;

V.

The approach to delivering high quality design where not specifically dealt with in
the development proposals and any associated conditions;

VI.

Triggers for delivery of on-site infrastructure and caps on the
commencement/occupation of development until that has been agreed/delivered.
This will include which infrastructure will be directly delivered and which will be
funded through contributions in cash or in kind;

VII.

Triggers for delivery of off-site infrastructure and caps on the
commencement/occupation of development until that infrastructure has been
agreed/delivered. This will include mechanisms to ensure infrastructure delivery
where dependent upon contributions or actions from third parties;

12 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 78

VIII.

Approach to stewardship and estate management including any provision of
assets or funds into a management body to ensure its long-term financial health
and viability and the mechanism for agreeing that such management body
includes representation from the community and meets key principles for
stewardship;

IX.

Stages or circumstances in which viability may be re-appraised (Appendix D);

X.

The approach to monitoring generally (section 18 below).

6.4

The intention is to promote a consistent approach to the negotiation of Section 106
agreements to provide certainty for those who are engaging with the Councils. The
developer should provide the Legal Advisors with the details of the Solicitors instructed
to act on their behalf, so they can provide a solicitor’s undertaking to pay the Council’s
reasonable legal fees before they commence any work related to the matter.

6.5

Developers should inform and involve landlords or anyone else with an interest in the
land (e.g. a bank with a legal charge) at an early stage. If such parties are not involve
early enough and only become involved on first draft of the S106 Agreement or later this
may slow down the process to completion significantly and increase costs.

6.6

The Council’s Legal Services charge a fee for drafting the S106 Agreement that will be
discussed and agreed. On major developments, the Councils will use external solicitors
to act on their behalf, and will charge for their work on an hourly rate basis. The costs
are likely to be higher and the Strategic Infrastructure and Planning Obligations Officer
will be able to advise on the amount of legal fees payable and undertaking
requirements. Protracted negotiation by the developer’s lawyers will also result in higher
legal costs. The Council’s legal costs, will be payable, whether or not the matter
proceeds to completion.

6.7

The Council’s Legal Advisors will draft the S106 Agreement once they have been
supplied with title information, costs undertaking and officers have confirmed that the
Heads of terms are agreed. The infrastructure types that could be required by S.106
Agreement are included at Appendix A. The Council’s Legal Advisors will usually
prepare the first draft of the S106 Agreement and Officers will review this before it is
sent to the Land Owner for their agreement. The Councils Legal Advisors will deal with
the agreement until completion when the planning permission will be issued.

6.8

Where obligations are secured towards the provision of facilities, it may be appropriate
for the developer to make provision for the physical upkeep of those facilities. A one off
financial contribution may be required to cover ongoing maintenance requirements. For
all maintenance payments, the Council and the developer will need to negotiate the type
of payments to be made, including staged payments for phased development, if
13 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 79

appropriate. Where the financial contribution is solely for maintenance, no repayment
should be required.

Trigger Points for Payments and Timing of Obligations
6.9

Financial contributions will be payable at specific stages in the development process.
The Council wants to ensure that infrastructure, works and community facilities are
available as they are needed when the first residents move into the development. During
the process of drafting S106 Agreements, trigger points for each obligation will be
agreed between the Council and the Land Owners.

6.10

The established trigger points are:
 Upon the date the S106 Agreement is completed;
 Upon or prior to commencement of the development or phase therein;
 Upon or prior to practical completion of the development or phase therein (as
confirmed by the Council); and
 Upon or prior to occupation of the development or phase therein.

6.11

The Land Promoter must inform the Council when the relevant trigger points (or stages
in the development), have been reached so that the necessary invoice(s) can be raised
by the Council and forwarded for payment.

Transfer of Land
6.12

Occasionally obligations will require land to be transferred to the Council or another
public body, usually in respect of public realm or open space obligations. In such cases
the S106 Agreement will contain a requirement to pay the Councils or the public’s body’s
legal costs in respect of the land transfer and provisions relating to the condition of the
land to be transferred.

Deed of Variation
6.13

Following the completion and signing of a S106 Agreement, either the Developer or the
Council may find it necessary to modify the contents of an Agreement. Additional time,
and therefore cost, will be required by the council and in the negotiation, preparation and
the drafting of such agreements. Reasonable fees will be charged for this, which will
vary dependent on the complexity of the matter.

7.

Monitoring and Delivery of Section 106 Planning Obligations

7.1

Given the scale of growth proposed across the District, monitoring arrangements are
important in order to ensure the appropriate delivery of housing, infrastructure and local
services. To this end, it is expected that monitoring data will be collected and compiled
of the rate and mix of housing, service and infrastructure delivery, in addition to data
showing the annual level of contribution made through the Section 106 process. This
14 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 80

will form part of a Monitoring Framework which will track how the requirements in the
IDP are being addressed.
7.2

In accordance with the Planning Practice Guidance (Reference ID: 10-023-20180724) a
copy of any planning obligation together with any details of any modification or discharge
of the planning obligation will be made publicly available by the local authorities; and
(Reference ID: 10-022-20180724) monitoring information will be regularly published so
that the public are able to easily see where contributions towards infrastructure and
affordable housing have been secured and spent. To achieve this:
I.

A copy of any signed S106 Agreement will be published on the website of the
Local Planning Authority that determined the application along with any
modification to the S106 or statement confirming discharge of any of the planning
obligations;

II.

A quarterly monitoring report will be taken to the Local Plan Cabinet Committee
(LPCC) or Cabinet and included as part of the Council’s Annual Monitoring Report.

III.

Developer Contributions will be published on a regular basis as an ‘Infrastructure
Funding Statement’ in accordance with the CIL regulations and National Planning
Policy Framework in the agreed format.

7.3

The delivery of non-financial contributions, or in-kind obligations, will be monitored by
the appropriate service areas responsible for project delivery. For example, where there
is an Affordable Housing element to a legal agreement, the Affordable Housing Team
will monitor this section of the agreement to ensure that it is complied with.

7.4

The Council’s Strategic Infrastructure and Planning Obligations Officer is responsible for
the monitoring of S106 Agreements.

7.5

All developers that enter into planning obligations will be required to pay a monitoring
contribution in order to contribute towards the Council’s costs incurred in the
administration, monitoring, and reporting of the discharge of the obligation. Work
involved includes maintaining the spreadsheet [database], logging individual obligations,
checking triggers, ensuring indexed amounts are correct, arranging receipt of
contributions, alerting service areas of receipts so that the required actions can be
programmed, the completion of actions, making sure that records are kept of discharge
of clauses, removing discharged obligations from the Local Land Charges Register, etc.

7.6

The current fees for monitoring contributions will be:


five percent (5%) of the cost value of the financial planning obligations included in
the agreement (up to a maximum of £50,000).



a flat rate of £500 per each non-financial obligation.
15 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 81

Complex/Major Development


7.7

will be considered on case by case basis. It may be agreed by negotiation, subject
to an additional management and administration charge.
The default position for administration charges being 5% of the total contributions

The monitoring fee will be payable upon completion of the agreement or later in
exceptional cases. Any revenues generated from the fees will be used for S106
administration, monitoring and management purposes only. The monitoring contributions
will be payable on the trigger of the first obligation unless otherwise specified within the
terms of the agreement. The Monitoring contribution will not be subject to any repayment
provisions.

Enforcement and Late Payments
7.8

Agreements made under S106 are binding contracts that run with the land. They may be
enforced against both the person(s) originally entering into the agreement and against
anyone subsequently acquiring an interest in the land. Only those persons having a
legal interest in the land can enter into obligations even if a prospective
purchaser/developer of the land has applied for the planning permission (although it is
possible for prospective purchasers to also be party to the obligations where they have
exchanged contracts to purchase

7.9

The developer should notify the Council upon commencement of development (using
the Notification Form at Appendix E) or when other agreed triggers have been reached.
Where the Council is not notified of this, and obligations become overdue, the Council
will seek to enforce the obligation. Where the Council is not notified of these and
obligations become overdue, the Council will seek to enforce the obligation and, in the
case of financial obligations, there will be a late payment clause. In the event of any
delay in making any payment required under a planning obligation, interest and
indexation will be charged to allow for fluctuation of prices between the date the
agreement is signed and the date the payment is made.

7.10

The Council will enforce obligations through the relevant legal channels once other
reasonable approaches to address non-compliance have been taken. In such cases, the
Council will seek to retrieve its legal costs in taking action from the party that is in breach
of its obligations as well as any additional indexation or interest on the sum that is due.

8.

Parish Councils

8.1

The Council recognise that when developers build new houses, the development will
have an impact on the local community e.g. the growth in the local population might lead
to greater pressure on social or sports facilities; or an increase in traffic. The Council can
16 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 82

use Section 106 Agreements to require developers to pay for projects to help manage
the impact of developments.
8.2

Parish Councils will be consulted as part of the statutory process and for larger sites at
the pre-application stage through the master plan/concept framework process or through
the Development Management Forum to establish the most appropriate form of
provision taking account of the location, scale and form of the proposed development in
their area. A S106 agreement may include works that the developer has to do, or a
payment of a financial contribution in order that their development does not adversely
affect the local community. The S106 can only be for site specific measures such as
Highways improvements, tree planting etc which are necessary to mitigate the impact of
development in their area and must be in compliance with the CIL regulations.

8.3

There is always the continual demand on planning contributions, despite the current
economic climate. The Council has to consider the validity of requests and priorities
these. Inevitably some requests, although considered essential to one body, may not be
included in agreements because of viability issues(section?) and CIL compliance
(Section 3).

9.

Neighbourhood Plans

9.1

Neighbourhood plans that have been through the statutory process are part of the
development plan framework for the District and where they have identified
infrastructure requirements these will need to be provided as part of a proposed
development. The Council must use any ‘made’ Neighbourhood Plans in the District to
inform the Council’s IDP.

Review of Strategy
9.3

This document will be reviewed and updated as is considered necessary. Such review
will ensure that the information used in calculating contributions (i.e. building costs,
census information) is up to date and base figures accurately reflect costs to ensure that
it remains fit for purpose, legislative compliant and in line with the Epping Forest District
IDP.

17 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 83

APPENDIX A: Infrastructure Types
1.

Affordable Housing

1.1

The provision of affordable housing is integral to meeting the balanced mix of different
sizes, tenures of housing required to address these demands. The Council’s Local Plan
SV and previous versions of the Local Plan set out clear requirements for planning
applicants on provision of affordable housing in the District.

1.2

Annex 2 of the NPPF defines affordable Housing as ‘housing for sale or rent to those
whose needs are not met by the market’. The Council’s housing policies require that this
is provided in the form of affordable rent which is allocated to applicants on the Housing
Register and shared ownership which is allocated on a cascade basis, prioritising
Housing Register applicants and local residents. These requirements and the main
terms are set out in the Council’s Deed of Nominations which is appended to relevant
s106 agreements.

1.3

The Council’s Affordable Housing Policy H 2 states on development sites which provide
11 or more homes, or residential floorspace of more than 1000sq m (Combined gross
internal area), the council will require 40% of those homes to be for affordable housing
provided on site. The affordable housing provided should not be larger than 3 bed, as
the Council has little need for larger units. The minimum size should be 1 bed 2 person
units and no garages should be provided.

1.4

The mix of units in respect of size will be determined on a site by site basis dependent
on the overall needs for the local area and on the specific characteristics of the
individual site. The Council will expect the mix of affordable housing to reflect the mix of
market housing, in terms of ratio types, sizes and the overall number of habitable rooms.
Mixed tenure residential development proposals must be also designed to be ‘tenure
blind’ to ensure homes across tenures are indistinguishable from one another in terms of
quality of design, space standards and building materials.

1.5

The Council will expect planning applications to include proposals to meet the Local Plan
SV requirements for the provision of affordable housing in full unless the applicants can
demonstrate that this would make the proposed development unviable to deliver (Appendix
D).

1.7

The Council will expect the affordable housing contributions to be provided in the form of
on-site housing. However, under exceptional circumstances the Council will accept
financial contributions in lieu of this. Financial contributions should be at least equivalent
to the increased gross development value if the affordable housing is not provided on
site.
18 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 84

1.8

The Council expects on-site affordable housing to be provided by one of the Council’s
Preferred Partner Registered Providers. Applicants should not automatically assume
that affordable housing grant will be made available for private sector developments.
Typically, applications for grant are only considered for schemes that can demonstrate
additionality (i.e. that the grant will enable more affordable housing to be delivered than
policy requirements alone would deliver). The applicant should liaise with one or more of
the Council’s Preferred Partners to determine the prices they will be willing to pay for the
affordable housing units.

2.

Transport

2.1

Highways infrastructure covers both the strategic road network and local roads within
the District. Highways England is responsible for providing and manging the strategic
network, whilst the road network is managed by Essex County Council, which is the
Highways Authority.

2.2

At the District level, Local Highways Panels (LHP) are responsible for setting local
priorities in their areas. LHPs cover a broad scope, including traffic management tackling
congestion, road safety, passenger transport, cycling schemes and major improvement
schemes. The Councils Transport Policy T1 & T2 aims to work in partnership to promote
a safe, efficient and convenient transport system, it will also minimise the need to travel,
promote the opportunity for sustainable transport modes, improve accessibility to
services and support future transition to a low carbon future.

2.3

As far as possible in accordance with the relevant regulations, new developments
should meet their own infrastructure needs. For highways, this is often done through
seeking Section 106 contributions to deliver the required infrastructure to support
development, delivery through a Section 278 Agreement or Section 38 Agreement
(commuted sum for maintenance following adoption). Any commuted sums for
maintenance will be required in accordance with Essex Highways Developer’s
Construction Manual and the IDP.

3.

Education

3.1

Essex County Council is the Children’s Services Authority, and has the statutory duty to
secure sufficient places in state funded schools, free early education and post-16
education for all children and young people. The County Council and Council will
therefore work in partnership with a wide variety of education providers to ensure that
the needs of the District are met to reflect the Epping Forest District IDP.

19 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 85

3.2

The Council’s policy D2 aims to achieve access to high quality education as it is an
important element of building and supporting sustainable communities and promoting
economic prosperity. Essex County Council seeks contributions, where appropriate,
from developments of 10 or more dwellings to mitigate impact on education facilities.
Contributions on sites smaller than ten dwellings will not be sought, unless their colocation with other sites would create a cumulative impact.

3.3

The IDP and Infrastructure schedule sets out the future requirements for education
services over the plan period and further information is included in the ‘Essex County
Council’s: Developers Guide to Infrastructure Contributions (2016). Any contributions will
still need to comply with the pooling restrictions.

4.

Open Space, Community Facilities and Green Infrastructure

4.1

For some types of open space – particularly amenity greenspace, and in some cases
children’s play – the provision of new space to meet newly arising demand will be
expected as part of developments. For larger development, more strategic open space
as well as community facilities will be expected.

4.2

The Council’s Policy DM6 states that where appropriate development proposals will be
required to provide open space, or links to open space in accordance with the guidance
contained in the IDP and open space strategy.

5.

Sports and Leisure

5.1

The Council will take a two-pronged approach to ensure the delivery of sport
infrastructure through the Local Plan and planning process. For sites that are
allocated in the Local Plan, all relevant projects have been captured through the
Infrastructure Delivery Plan.

6.

Healthcare

6.1

The NHS is undergoing a shift in service in response to rising demands and decreasing
resources. New models of service provision are focused on a more integrated network of
community and social care services, enhanced out of hours services, and the
collaboration of a more diverse range of healthcare professionals. The Council’s policy
D2 states that development proposals will be permitted only where they provide
improved essential facilities and services required to serve the scale of the proposed
development.

7.

Emergency Services

7.1

Police and fire and rescue services are funded through a combination of Central
Government grant and council tax revenues. Ambulance services are funded by
20 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 86

NHS England. There are no identified physical infrastructure requirements associated
with the quantum and distribution of growth proposed in Epping Forest District.

8.

Managing Recreational Pressure and Air Quality Impact on the Epping
Forest Special Area of conservation (‘SAC’)

8.1

Epping Forest (the Forest) is London’s largest open space, it also provides recreational
open space for residents from within Epping Forest District. It covers some 2400
hectares and is run by the Conservators of Epping Forest owned and manged by the
Corporation of London. The Councils policy DM2 states that the Council will expect all
relevant development proposals to assist in the conservation and enhancement of the
biodiversity, character, appearance and landscape setting of Epping Forest SAC.

8.2.

An Interim Approach to Managing the Recreational Pressures on the Epping Forest
Special Conservation Area (SAC) was adopted by Cabinet on the 18 October 2018. It is
a material consideration in determination of planning applications and permitted
development rights proposals for residential development which would result in net
increase in new homes with the Epping forest District administrative area.

8.3

The interim approach recognises that visitors from one local authority administrative
area often go to a part of the SAC that lies within a different local authority administrative
area. The Interim Approach identifies schemes and their associated costings developed
and programmed to cover the period up to 2033. Contributions will be sought to mitigate
the impact of the recreational pressures on the Epping Forest SAC. The route for
securing the contributions will be by way of a Section 106 legal obligation in accordance
with the Strategy. The monies secured are not subject to CIL Regulations pooling
restrictions.

8.4

The Interim Approach referred to above does not, however address the
significant effect that all residential and employment development within the
District is likely to have on the SAC with regards to air quality. There is currently
no interim approach to managing air quality for the District and the Council and
other partner organisations continue to work together to identify an acceptable air
quality mitigation strategy.

9.

Stewardship

9.1

Delivering a successful new community requires a clear understanding of how assets
generated by the development process will be managed in perpetuity. New development
must demonstrate how such management will be undertaken on behalf of the
community. Putting local people at the heart of this process can generate increased
local support, creativity, and entrepreneurialism. The right stewardship models can also
21 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 87

provide reassurance for local authorities who may be worried about taking on the
management of such assets at a time of increasing budgetary pressure.
9.2

There is a range of types of stewardship bodies that take on responsibility for green
space management, in which an organisation committed to charitable objectives for a
town commits to proactively share and reinvest money created through the town’s
development and management in order to look after a range of community services,
ranging from art to healthcare. Such bodies can take a range of organisational and legal
forms, depending on the type of development, the delivery vehicle used, and the assets
being managed.

9.3

Local Plan Policy SP 3 and SP 4, refer to stewardship principles for infrastructure and
services required as a consequence of development, provision for their maintenance will
be sought from developers which could include transport, community facilities,
parklands, open spaces etc.

9.4

The sustainable, long-term success of a stewardship model can only be achieved
with an effective means of income generation. Assets require maintenance and
management over the long term, which requires security, flexibility and transparency in
funding from the stewardship body.

10.

Other Potential Development Specific Requirements

10.1

This Strategy may not identify all possible planning obligations requirements that may be
applicable to any individual development. The precise circumstances of each
development will be different and therefore there may be additional development specific
requirements, such as mitigation measures, that may be needed to address the impact
of individual developments. Such requirement, by reason of their nature, will need to be
assessed on a site by site basis.

22 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 88

Appendix B: Planning Conditions
1.1

New development will contribute to site related and other infrastructure needs through a
combination of either:


Planning Conditions (site/development related) or;


Planning Obligations to secure developer contributions or works in kind (strategic,
local requirements & site/development related).

What are Planning Conditions?
1.2

Planning conditions are requirements made by the Council, in the granting of planning
permission, to ensure that certain actions or elements related to the development
proposal are carried out. Planning conditions are likely to cover, amongst other things,


the submission of reserve matters;



controls over the materials to be used;



controls over the occupation of new buildings or further stages of development until
certain other actions are completed;



the requirement to undertake further investigations as work proceeds (e.g.
archaeological recording);



construction in accordance with the submitted method statement;



the requirement to implement works in accordance with the submitted plans such as
landscaping, tree planting, drainage works etc.;



and requirements for the certification of works following completion.

1.3

Where there is a choice between imposing planning conditions and entering into a
planning obligation to manage the impacts of a new development, the use of planning
conditions is always preferable.

1.4

When used properly, conditions can enhance the quality of development and enable
development proposals to proceed where it would otherwise have been necessary to
refuse planning permission, by mitigating the adverse effects of the development.

1.5

The main powers relating to Council’s use of conditions are in sections 70,72,73,73A
and Schedule 5 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Section 70(1)(a) of the
Act enables the Council in granting planning permission to impose “such conditions as
they think fit”. This power must be interpreted in light of material factors such as
the National Planning Policy Framework, this supporting guidance on the use of
conditions, and relevant case law.
23 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 89

Appendix C: Legislative contact
National
1.1

The Planning Practice Guidance on Planning Obligations states these assist in
mitigating impact of development to make it acceptable in planning terms (Reference ID:
23b-002-20190315) entered into by landowners and developers (and others) through
Section 106 agreements (Reference ID: 23b-001-20190315). Under Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act (1990) a planning obligation may:
I.

Restrict the development or use of the land in any specified way;

II.

Require specified operations or activities to be carried out in, on, under or
over the land;

III.

Require the land to be used in any specified way;

IV.

Require a sum or sums to be paid to the authority on a specified date, dates
or periodically

Planning Obligations
1.2

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019) (Paragraph 56) and
Regulation 122(2) of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations (2010) place
into law for the first time, the Governments policy tests on the use of S106 Agreements.
As of 6 April 2010, It therefore became unlawful for planning obligations to be taken into
account when determining a planning application for a development, if the obligation
does not meet any of the following tests:
I.

Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;

II.

Directly related to the development; and

III.

Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

1.3

At present these legal tests (often referred to as ‘Regulation 122 tests) restrict the use of
Planning Obligations by prohibiting pooling where five or more separate S106
Agreements already exist in the LPA area for a particular project or infrastructure.

1.4

In November 2015, the Government commissioned a review of the CIL system. The
results of the CIL review, published in February 2017 alongside the Housing White
Paper, concluded the current CIL system was not fulfilling the original intention of
providing a faster, fairer, simpler, more certain and more transparent way of ensuring
that all development contributes something towards cumulative infrastructure need.
24 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 90

On the 1st September 2019 (CIL Regulations 2019) the restrictions on the ‘pooling’ of
section 106 planning obligations to fund infrastructure will be removed.
1.5

Where Planning Obligations are necessary, the Councils require applicants for major
development to enter into Planning Obligations that capture the value of land for
consented development to deliver required infrastructure on site and across the District.
Applicants are required to support their applications at submission stage with:
I.

Proposed draft Heads of Terms for a Section 106 agreement including itemised
schedule of infrastructure, phasing, cost and responsibility for delivery based upon
the Policy, the IDP and as identified through engagement with the Councils. This
should reflect requirements of the Template Section 106 Agreement (below) or, for
smaller sites, such other agreed process;

II.

A Statement of Delivery. This statement will confirm the Applicant’s position in
relation to the viability and deliverability of the development (see Appendix D).

1.6

The provision of many items of infrastructure across the District is the responsibility of
Essex County Council under its statutory duties. In addition to the District Council’s IDP
and supplementary guidance, developers will also be expected to refer to the County
Council’s Developers’ Guide to Infrastructure Contributions

2

Section 278 Agreement

2.1

Agreements to authorise work on the public adopted highway network are made under
section 278 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended by section 23 of the New Roads and
Street Works Act 1991. These agreements facilitate works that have been identified and
determined as necessary for planning permission to be granted. This strategy does not
specify the circumstances in which a S278 agreement will be required. Requirements for
S278 agreements will be identified separately, although this will often take place

alongside negotiation of the S106 agreement.
2.2

Essex County Council is responsible for delivering and maintaining highways, transport,
and schools Infrastructure, in addition to providing libraries, adult social care and youth
services. The County Council is also responsible for waste and is the lead flood
authority. The Council is working with ECC to assist in identifying the additional
infrastructure that is needed to support growth in the Local Plan.

3.

Section 38 Agreement

3.1

Should the construction of a new road be required for residential, industrial or public the
normal method for the road to be adopted and therefore become part of the existing
25 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 91

public highway network is through an agreement struck under Section 38 of the
Highways Act 1980.
3.2

Section 38 Agreements are negotiated between the Local Highway Authority’s engineer
and the developer's Highway Engineer. Plans showing all elements of construction and
specifications should be provided. The plans and details will be similar to those required
for highway improvements under a Section 278 agreement (see above). Additional
guarantees may be required between the developer and the Local Highway Authority to
ensure that the proposed works can be satisfactorily completed in the event of any
default or unforeseen circumstances.

3.3

The adoption process can be lengthy. For the period of time which the road lies
unadopted, the developer is responsible for maintenance and upkeep of the road until
adoption happens. On larger developments, the completed road may be used as site
access for later phases of the development; adoption under a Section 38 normally takes
place on or after completion of the whole development.

26 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 92

Appendix D: The Council’s Approach to Viability

1

Viability Testing

1.1

Viability testing is an important part of the planning process. The requirement to assess
viability forms part of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), and it is a
requirement of the CIL Regulations. In each case the requirement is slightly different, but
all have much in common.

1.2

All considerations and approaches to assessing Viability will be based upon the context
of the guidance set out in the PPG on Viability and Paragraph 57 of the NPPF (February
2019).

2

National Planning Policy Framework (July 2018)

2.1

As in the 2012 NPPF, viability remains a core area of the plan-making process. The 2018
NPPF does not include detail on the viability process, rather stresses the importance of
viability.

2.2

The main change is a shift of viability testing from the development management stage to
the plan-making stage.

2.3

The 2018 NPPF does not include technical guidance on undertaking viability work. This
is included within the PPG that was also updated in July 2018.

3.

National Planning Practice Guidance (July 2019)

3.1

When the use of land changes, for example from agricultural to residential, the value of
that land changes. National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) on Viability sets out how
the value of land should be considered (Reference ID: 10-013-20180724 and 10-01920180724). Provided that the value generated by a development is more than the cost of
developing it and that a sufficient incentive exists to provide the land and build the
development, then the scheme is viable. The aim is to ensure an approach that balances
reasonable landowner incentive and developer profit with appropriate benefits to the
public through high quality development and infrastructure. The provision of these
benefits is what is referred to as Land Value Capture.

3.2

The Council will ensure that any increases in land value that arise from the granting of
planning consents are used to ensure that high quality development proposals are
delivered that are supported by necessary infrastructure. Illustrated simply:

27 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 93

3.3

The form that this equitable Land Value Capture may take is varied and will include a
combination of the following:
I.
Achieving high quality design – through collaborative engagement on masterplans
and planning applications between Councils, developers, stakeholders and the
community on the appearance and form development takes in response to its
surroundings. Investment in high quality design by the developer enhances the
overall value of the development;
II.

Delivering infrastructure on-site – through approval of design details
applications, planning conditions and planning obligations in Section
agreements (see below) including affordable housing and education, health
community facilities. These are necessary to make development acceptable
are funded by the developer and landowners;

via
106
and
and

III.

Contributing to infrastructure – through planning obligations in Section 106
agreements including public transport and highway improvements. Contributions to
infrastructure may come from more than one development and there is also the
possibility of additional funding from external sources (see below);

IV.

Providing services, endowments/assets and governance arrangements to support
on-going stewardship – through planning obligations in Section 106 agreements and
planning conditions including measures to support public transport such as
subsidised travel for residents and cycle hire, provision of assets or funds into a
management organisation for the long-term stewardship of the development and its
buildings and spaces. Garden City Principles state that Stewardship should include
community ownership

4.

Viability Guidance

4.1

The need to deliver strategic infrastructure items across the District and the Garden Town
including on a ‘pooled’ basis, through co-ordinated contributions of land and/or
infrastructure costs, such as the STC, mean that it is important to adopt a consistent and
transparent approach to viability assessment.

4.2

Alongside the IDP and as a part of the Plan-making processes, viability assessment for
each of the allocated sites will be undertaken in order to determine the appropriate level
of developer contributions to be sought given the need to deliver the necessary
infrastructure whilst ensuring that the sites remain viable and deliverable.

4.3

For any major development (applications for 10 or more homes or 1,000m2 for nonresidential development) applicants will be required to demonstrate that the application
will meet requirements of policies and is considered viable and deliverable. This should
be through the provision of a Statement of Delivery (paragraph 4.4) comprising:

28 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 94

I.

Gross Development Value for the application scheme*;

II.

Benchmark Land Value based upon existing use value (EUV) plus the assumed
Landowner Premium (EUV+)*;

III.

Development Costs including build costs, site-specific infrastructure costs, total cost
of meeting Policy requirements including contributions to infrastructure set out in the
IDP, General Finance Costs, Professional Fees, and any project contingency costs
as well as any assumed provision of external funding*;

IV.

A comprehensive development programme indicating assumed phasing and/or
timing associated with the delivery of infrastructure and, specifically, where such
phasing and/or timing does not accord with policy, the IDP or requirements identified
as necessary through engagement with the Councils for reasons of viability this
should be supported by a details of development cash flow;

V.

List of Abnormal Costs that the applicant has identified which have been taken into
account when defining the Benchmark Land Value;

VI.

Financial return assumed by the Developer.
* The Applicant will be required to include explicit agreement to the assumptions of
the most recent viability assessment published for the District or Garden Town or,
alternative assumptions where clear evidence is provided to demonstrate what has
changed since that viability assessment was undertaken.

4.4

The Statement of Delivery should reflect the requirements set out in Policy, the IDP and
as otherwise agreed through engagement with the Councils and should, wherever
appropriate, include explicit agreement to the assumptions within the most recent viability
assessment published for the District or Garden Town. Where the applicant wishes to
rely upon different assumptions these must be clearly evidenced so that they can be
assessed by the Council.

4.5

The Councils recognise that delivery of growth in the district will extend over many years
during which, from time to time, external factors could improve or reduce viability of
development. The viability of development may also be affected by the accuracy of
assumptions made at the stage of assessment which may vary during planning for outline
or detailed/reserved matters stages and again at the commencement of, and during, the
construction phase.

4.6

As set out in PPG (Reference ID: 10-009-20180724) the potential risk to developers is
accounted for in the assumptions for developer return in a viability assessment.
Realisation of risk does not in itself necessitate further viability assessment or trigger a
review mechanism. Review mechanisms are not a tool to protect a return to the
developer, but to strengthen local authorities’ ability to seek compliance with relevant
policies over the lifetime of the project. As a general rule, re-appraisal of policy compliant
will not be entertained.
29 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 95

4.7

Where Applicants fail to demonstrate full compliance with policy requirements through
reasons of viability they will be required to provide detailed information to support all
assumptions made within the Statement of Delivery in order that the Council can assess
the case. As set out in the PPG (Reference ID: 10-009-20180724), the applicant will also
be required to commit to re-appraisal and agree a clear process and terms of engagement
for how and when viability will be reassessed over the lifetime of the development to
ensure policy compliance and optimal public benefits through economic cycles.
Circumstances where re-appraisal will be undertaken may include:
I.

Detailed planning stage (if viability only assessed at plan-making or outline planning
stage);

II.

Change in scheme proposals, where the Council deem this to have a bearing upon
viability;

III.

Change in market conditions, where the Council deem this to have a bearing upon
viability;

IV.

Approximately every 3 to 5 years, or the occupation of 500 homes or completion of
an agreed phase on the development since the last viability appraisal, whichever
the Council deem to establish new market evidence to be considered;

V.

Provision of any external funding contributions which may reduce the apportionment
of infrastructure costs, or improve cash flow, for the development.

VI.

Where the Council agrees that schemes are unviable. Mechanisms for re-appraisal
will be written into Section 106 agreements. If viability improves, applicants will be
required to rectify any short fall in later stages of the development.

4.8

Statements of Delivery, viability evidence and viability re-appraisal will be reviewed by the
Council. In accordance with the PPG (Reference ID: 10-021-20180724) viability
assessment will be made publicly available and should be prepared on that basis.

4.9

In accordance with the PPG (Reference ID: 10-021-20180724) viability assessment will
be made publicly available and should be prepared on that basis.

4.11

Where the Council is satisfied that the applicant has demonstrated that the submission of a
viability assessment is justified, the Council will give due weight to the assessment having
regard to all the circumstances in the case, including whether the plan and viability
evidence underpinning the plan is up to date, any change in site circumstances since the
plan was brought into force, and the transparency of assumptions behind evidence
submitted as part of the viability assessment. The Council will undertake an independent
review of that assessment for which the applicant will bear the cost. Where the Council is
satisfied that the viability assessment justifies the provision of affordable housing below the
level required by Policy H 2, where appropriate, the Council will expect additional affordable

30 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 96

housing provision to be made if viability improves before full completion of the development
permitted.
4.12

Proposals that do not accord with the requirements of paragraph A of Policy H2 must be
accompanied by a financial and viability assessment appraisal (with supporting
evidence), which is transparent and complies with relevant national or local guidance
applicable at the time. Where a viability assessment is submitted, it must be based
upon and refer back to the viability evidence which informed the Local Plan. The
applicant must demonstrate what has changed since the evidence was produced which
justifies the need for a viability assessment.

4.13

In determining the weight to attach to a viability assessment submitted, the Council will
have regard to:
I.

How up to date the Local Plan and viability evidence underpinning the plan is;

II.

Any change in site circumstances since the plan was brought into force; and

III.

The transparency of assumptions behind evidence submitted as part of the
viability assessment.”

31 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 97

APPENDIX E: NOTIFICATION FORM
EVENT NOTIFICATION AND PAYMENT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 106 AGREEMENT/UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING
Dated
Made Between

Planning Ref:

EPF/ / /

Site Address
Agreement Date
SITE OWNER DETAILS
Name
Contact name
Address
Main
Mobile
EVENTS BEING NOTIFIED
Commencement Date
Occupation of
Development (Number
if relevant) & date

COMPLIANCE WITH OBLIGATION(S)
Schedule
Details of Obligation and compliance

Paragraph
32 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 98

PAYMENT OF S106 CONTRIBUTIONS
Payment
Type

Amount

Indexation Total

Payable to

Example
Education
(primary)
Example
(Affordable
Housing)

X

Y

X+Y

ECC

£
A

£
B

£
A+B

EFDC

£

£

£

METHOD OF PAYMENT
Payment of S106 contributions can be made by BACS, CHAPS or cheque.
National Westminster Bank Plc
279 High Road
Epping CM16 4BT
Sort Code: 60 07 39
Account No: 56340001
Please quote reference – EPF/

/

This form should be completed and sent to:
Strategic Infrastructure & Planning Obligations Officer
Epping Forest District Council, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping, CM16 4BZ

33 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 99

APPENDIX F: S106 PRECEDENT AND NOMINATION AGREEMENT
S106 PRECEDENT

NOMINATION AGREEMENT
THIS DEED OF NOMINATION is made the

day of

2019

BETWEEN
(1) THE COUNCIL and
(2) THE ASSOCIATION
DEFINITIONS
"Affordable Housing Unit"

any dwelling for use as self-contained housing accommodation
provided by the Association within the District either as a
Rented Unit or as a Shared Ownership Unit

“Affordable Housing Land”

the land upon which the Affordable Housing Units are
constructed

“Applicant”

either a Rented Unit Applicant or a Shared Ownership Applicant
as appropriate

"Association"

[INSERT DETAILS]

“Bidding Cycle”

the period between vacant possession of a Rented Unit being
first advertised through the Choice Based Lettings Scheme
and the closing date for applicants to express expressions of
interest to receive a tenancy offer for vacant properties

34 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 100

“Broad Market Rental Area” the geographical area set by the Valuation Office Agency
which is used to define the amount a household might be able
to claim in housing benefit to support their housing costs

“Capital Funding Guide”

the Affordable Housing Capital Funding Guide hosted by the
Homes and Communities Agency

“Choice Based Lettings

a process through which applicants on the Council’s Housing

Scheme”

Register and existing tenants seeking a transfer can apply for
vacant Rented Units which are advertised locally

"Council"

Epping Forest District Council of Civic Offices, High Street,
Epping, Essex CM16 4BZ

“Council’s Housing

a list of applicants for Council and Housing and Association

Register”

accommodation held by the Council in accordance with the
Housing Act 1996

“Deed”

this deed

“District”

the administrative area of Epping Forest District Council

"Expert for

an independent chartered surveyor with not less than 10 years

Affordable

post qualification experience in the valuation of residential

Housing”

dwellings and residential development land to be appointed (in
default of agreement on appointment) by the President for the
time being of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

“Help to Buy Agent”

the organisation selected by the Homes and Communities
Agency to assist Shared Ownership Applicants find Shared
Ownership Units and to assist Registered Providers of Social
Housing to find suitable Shared Ownership Applicants

“Homes and Communities

the organisation of that name (trading as Homes England) or
35 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 101

Agency”

such other body for the time being having or being entitled to
exercise the power to regulate Registered Providers of Social
Housing now conferred on such body under the Housing and
Regeneration Act 2008

“Housing Allocation

the Council’s written statement of how it allocates its own

Scheme”

housing and makes nominations to Registered Providers of
Social Housing

"the List"

the Rented Unit List or the Shared Ownership List (as
applicable)

“Local Housing Allowance”

the maximum amount that would be paid in housing benefit for
different types of Rented Unit within the Broad Market Rental
Area

“Local Letting

an arrangement between the Council and the Association for

Plan”

the nomination of applicants with specific recognised needs
related to the type or design of the Affordable Housing Units
being provided by the Association

“Mortgagee”

is any mortgagee or chargee (or any receiver (including an
administrative receiver) appointed by such mortgagee or
chargee or any other person appointed under any security
documentation to enable such mortgagee or chargee to realise
its security or any administrator (howsoever appointed)
including a housing administrator (each a Receiver))

“New Affordable

any Affordable Housing Unit ready for its first occupation as
self-

Housing Unit”

contained

housing

accommodation

provided

by

the

Association within the District
36 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 102

“New Rented Unit”

any Rented Unit ready for its first occupation as self-contained
accommodation provided by the Association within the District

“New Shared Ownership

any Shared Ownership Unit ready for its first occupation as
self-

Unit”

contained accommodation provided by the Association within
the District

"Nomination Rights"

the rights of the Council to nominate people for occupation of
the Affordable Housing Units

"Notice"

written notice by the Association to the Council of the
completion of or the vacancy of a Rented Unit in respect of
which the Council has Nomination Rights and will include full
details including the amount of rent payable, number of
bedrooms, services, floor level, lift availability

“Open Market Value”

the market value of the Affordable Housing Units or the
Affordable Housing Land as appropriate as determined in
accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
Appraisal and Valuation Manual Practice Statement 4.2 or
other replacement guidance current at the date of valuation
provided that the terms

within this Deed relating to the

provision of Affordable Housing shall be disregarded in such
determination. In the event of disagreement the Open Market
Value shall be referred to the Expert for Affordable Housing
“Priority Bands”

the criteria within the Housing Allocation Scheme used to
prioritise between Applicants

“Receiver”

any receiver (including an administrative receiver) appointed
by such mortgagee or chargee or any other person appointed
37 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 103

under any security documentation to enable such mortgagee
or chargee to realise its security or any administrator
(howsoever appointed) including a housing administrator
“Registered

means a landlord on the Register of Providers of Social

Provider of Social

Housing maintained by the Homes and Communities Agency
or Housing” successor body under Section 1 Housing Act 1996

“Rented Unit”

an Affordable Housing Unit let at a rent in accordance with the
Homes and Communities Agency Rent Standard applicable to
Registered Providers of Social Housing or any replacement
arrangement and which shall be no more than the Local
Housing Allowance relating to the Broad Market Rental Area in
which the Affordable Housing Unit is situated

“Rented Unit Applicant”

a person applying to be nominated for a Rented Unit

“Rented Unit List”

a written list of names and addresses of suitable nominees in
priority order in respect of the Rented Unit nominated in
accordance with the criteria set out in Clause 4

“Schedule”

the written list of Shared Ownership Applicants for Shared
Ownership Units identified and considered by the Association
in accordance with the criteria set out in Clause 5

“Shared Ownership”

disposal by means of a shared ownership lease which is a
lease granted on payment of a premium calculated by
reference to a percentage of the value of the demised premises
the cost of providing them and under which the tenant is
entitled to acquire a maximum of a 75% interest initially but
with the entitlement to acquire additional shares to a 100%
leasehold interest or a freehold interest in the demised
premises as appropriate

38 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 104

“Shared Ownership

a person applying to be nominated for a Shared Ownership
Unit

Applicant”

within the District

“Shared Ownership Unit”

an Affordable Housing Unit that is disposed of as Shared
Ownership

“Shared Ownership Unit

the written list of Shared Ownership Applicants identified in the

List Shared”

Schedule prioritised by the Council in respect of each New
Shared Ownership Unit in accordance with the criteria set out

in
Clause 4
“Site”

[INSERT DETAILS]

This Deed is made pursuant to the Housing Acts 1985 and 1996 (as amended) and Section
111 of the Local Government Act 1972 and in each case any statutory amendment variation
substitution or re-enactment thereof together with all other statutory powers and Acts
pursuant to which the parties hereto shall be empowered to enter into this Deed.
IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:
Existing Nomination Agreements

1.

As from the date hereof any nomination agreements made previously between the
Council and the Association shall be revoked and the Council's Nomination Rights in
respect of New Affordable Housing Units and Affordable Housing Units shall be in
accordance with the terms of this Deed.

Nomination Rights

2.

The Council shall have the right to nominate Applicants for selection for 100% of New
Affordable Housing Units and for 75% of lets of Rented Units thereafter (that is the
39 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 105

first 3 out of every 4 lets) as the Rented Units become vacant in each instance except
where:
(a) The Council has previously owned the land on which the Rented Units are
situated, in which the case the Council shall have the right to nominate Rented
Applicants for 100% of Rented Units; and
(b) the Council and Association agree a higher percentage figure than 75% of lets of
Rented Units.
3.

The Council's nomination of Applicants will be in accordance with its Housing
Allocations Scheme, pursuant to Part VI of the Housing Act 1996 (as amended).

4

When compiling the List the Council will generally prioritise the Applicants in the
following order:

4.1

people who are on the Councils Housing Register – ranked according to the Priority
Bands set out in the Councils Housing Allocations Scheme and the Applicant’s
Registration Date on the Council’s Housing Register

4.2

other residents of the District – ranked by length of residency in the District

4.3

people who work in the District – ranked by length of time worked in the District

4.4

people who have a parent or child living in the District

4.5

people who do not meet any of the above criteria

5.

When compiling the Schedule the Association must include the full postal address
and the number of bedrooms for each Shared Ownership Unit and in respect of each
Shared Ownership Applicant include the following information:

5.1

their full name and address;

5.2

whether or not they are on the Councils Housing Register;

5.3

whether or not they are otherwise a resident in the District and if so their length of
residency in the District together with the addresses where they have lived in the
District and the dates of residency for the previous 5 years;

5.4

whether or not they currently work in the District and if so:

40 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 106

(a)

the name of their current and previous employers relating to when they have

worked in the District for the previous 5 years;
(b)

the address(es) of their place(s) of employment in the District for the previous

5 years; and
(c)
5.5

how long they have worked for each employer in the District;

whether or not a parent or child currently lives in the District and if so the name and
address of the parent or child

Council's Exercise of Nomination Rights for Rented Units
6.

The Association shall give the Council a minimum of two months’ Notice of the
expected date of availability for occupation of a New Affordable Housing Unit and as
much notice as possible of a vacancy of a Rented Unit in respect of which the Council
has Nomination Rights

7.

On receipt of the Notice for a New Affordable Housing Unit or a Rented Unit the
Council will advertise the vacancy in the next available Bidding Cycle for the Choice
Based Lettings Scheme and shall then provide the List to the Association within 5
working days of the closing date for the bids received in that Bidding Cycle

8

The Association shall have the final right to approve those Rented Unit Applicants
nominated by the Council but in the event that a Rented Unit Applicant is not approved
the Association shall invite the Council to make further nominations in accordance
with Clause 11.

9.

The Association shall use reasonable endeavours to offer the Rented Unit to the
Rented Unit Applicants in the order of priority on which they appear on the List.

10.

The Association shall advise the Council, in writing, of the Rented Unit Applicant
selected and, if not in the order of priority on the List, the reasons for refusing each
of the other nominated Rented Unit Applicants

11.

If the Association does not accept any of the Council's nominated Rented Unit
Applicants on the List or all of those nominated refuse a tenancy, the Council will be
invited by the Association to provide another List within ten working days for a New
41 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 107

Affordable Housing Unit or five working days for a Rented Unit of written notification
of same and the provisions of Clauses 7 8 and 9 of this Deed shall apply

12.

If the Council does not provide a List in accordance with the provisions of Clause 7,
the Association shall be free to let the New Rented Housing Unit or the Rented Unit
to someone other than a nominee of the Council and the Council shall forego its
Nomination Rights in respect of such letting in that particular instance PROVIDED the
allocation is made in accordance with the Capital Funding Guide

13.

In such circumstances as described in Clause 12 the Council may nominate Rented
Unit Applicants to Rented Units in respect of the next 3 lettings and the Council's
continuing right to nominate Rented Unit Applicants in respect of the Rented Units
remains unchanged

Councils Exercise of Nomination Rights for Shared Ownership Units
14.

The Association must market the availability of New Shared Ownership Units so as
to achieve the highest possible number of Shared Ownership Applicants such
marketing to include liaising with the Help to Buy Agent and obtaining a list of
Shared Ownership Applicants

15

The Association shall serve the Schedule on the Council no less than two months
before the proposed date of completion of a New Shared Ownership Unit or Units for
which the Council has Nomination Rights

16.

The Council shall provide the Shared Ownership List to the Association:

16.1

within five (5) working days of receiving the Schedule in respect of the New Shared
Ownership Units where the number of Shared Ownership Applicants is five (5) or
less; and

16.2

within ten (10) working days of receiving the Schedule in respect of the New Shared
Ownership Units where the number of Shared Ownership Applicants is six (6) or more

17.

The Association shall use reasonable endeavours to offer each New Shared
Ownership Unit to the Shared Ownership Applicants in respect of that unit in the order
of priority on which they appear on the Shared Ownership List EXCEPT THAT
42 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 108

17.1

in circumstances where the total number of Shared Ownership Applicants on the
Schedule and any subsequent Schedule is less than the total number of available
New Shared Ownership Units then none of the New Shared Ownership Units shall
be offered to any Shared Ownership Applicant who only meets the criteria set out at
Clauses 4.4 or 4.5 above for a period of six (6) months from the date that the relevant
New Shared Ownership Unit is ready for first occupation

18

The Association shall advise the Council in writing of the Shared Ownership Applicant
selected and, if not in the order of priority, the reason for refusing each Shared
Ownership Applicant

19

If all of the Shared Ownership Applicants identified on the Shared Ownership Unit
List in respect of the New Shared Ownership Unit refuse the offer of that Shared
Ownership Unit the Association will re-market that unit to include writing to all those
listed on the Council’s Housing Register who have a housing need for a property with
the number of bedrooms provided by that Shared Ownership Unit or for a property
with one bedroom less than provided and thereafter provide another Schedule to the
Council following receipt of reservation forms in respect of that Shared Ownership
Unit and the provisions of Clauses 16 and 17 of this Deed shall apply PROVIDED
THAT the Association shall be under no obligation to provide more than two
Schedules to the Council in any circumstances

20.

If the Council does not provide a Shared Ownership List in accordance with Clause
16 or the Association has provided two Schedules in accordance with Clause 19 the
Association shall be free to offer the Shared Ownership Unit to any Shared Ownership
Applicant and the Council shall forgo its right to nominate in respect of that Shared
Ownership Unit Provided that the allocation is made in accordance with the Capital
Funding Guide

21.

The Association shall be responsible for investigating and assessing that the Shared
Ownership Applicant is financially able to afford the Shared Ownership Unit having
regard to the Home and Communities Agency’s guidelines.

43 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 109

Mortgagee Provisions
22.

Nothing within this Deed shall prevent or restrict the mortgaging or charging of an
Affordable Housing unit

23. It is hereby agreed that the provisions of this Deed shall not be binding upon nor
enforceable against the following: (a)

Any tenant of an Affordable Housing Unit exercising a statutory or voluntary

right to buy or right to acquire pursuant to the Housing Act 1985 or the Housing Act
1996 or any statutory amendment modification or re-enactment thereof
(b)

Any lessee of a Shared Ownership Unit whether or not such lessee has

staircased to 100% ownership
(c)

Any mortgagee, chargee or receiver appointed by a mortgagee or chargee of

a Shared Ownership Unit (not being a Mortgagee)
(d)

The successors in title to the persons or bodies referred to in paragraphs (a)

(b) and (c) above or any persons or bodies deriving title through a Mortgagee.
24.

The parties agree that if a Mortgagee seeks to dispose of the Affordable Housing
Units or any one of them pursuant to its power of sale or other power or powers within
the mortgage:

24.1

it shall give notice to the Council in writing of its intention to dispose (“the Initial
Notice”) and thereafter first seek to dispose of the Affordable Housing Units or any
one of them to another Registered Provider of Social Housing provided that if within
a period of one calendar month from the date of the Initial Notice the Mortgagee is
unable to so dispose at the price it may desire it shall offer to transfer its interest to
the Council or the Council’s nominee (“the Mortgagee Notice”) and the parties hereto
acknowledge that the Mortgagee may serve the Mortgagee Notice simultaneously
with the Initial Notice or at any time within 1 month after service of the Initial Notice;

24.2

the consideration for any transfer to the Council or the Council’s nominees shall be
the Open Market Value

24.3

if the Council or the Councils nominee and the Mortgagee have not agreed the
consideration for the said transfer within 2 weeks after the Mortgagee Notice then the
44 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 110

matter shall be referred to the Expert for Affordable Housing and the procedure
detailed in clause 25 shall apply;
24.4

if the Council fails to complete the transfer or their nominee fails to the transfer within
3 months from the date of the Mortgagee Notice, notwithstanding the procedure
detailed in clause 25 applying, the Mortgagee shall be entitled to dispose of its interest
in the Affordable Housing Units to whomsoever it wishes at whatever price free from
the obligations and restrictions contained in this Deed.

Appointment of Expert for Affordable Housing
25.

If the matters in clause 24.3 occur then the appointment of the Expert for Affordable
Housing shall be made jointly by the parties or, if they do not agree on the
appointment within 2 weeks after the Mortgagee Notice, the appointment shall be
made by the President of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors or his duly
appointed deputy, or other person authorised by him to make such appointments on
his behalf within 4 weeks after the Mortgagee Notice;

25.2

the parties shall ensure that the terms of the appointment of the Expert for
Affordable Housing shall require him to give his written decision within two weeks of
receipt by him of the submissions referred to in the preceding paragraph;

25.3

if the expert refuses to act, becomes incapable of acting or dies, either party may
request the appointment of another expert in his stead under this clause 25;

25.4

the determination of the Expert for Affordable Housing, except in case of manifest
error, is to be binding on the parties and time shall be of the essence in respect of all
timescales referred to in this clause 25.

Local Letting Plan
26.

The parties agree that in respect of some Affordable Housing Units that the
Association develops and/or manages within the District it will be appropriate to look
at Local Letting Plans to create sustainable communities;

45 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 111

26.1

where it is agreed in writing between the parties that a Local Letting Plan is
appropriate in respect of identified Affordable Housing Units it is agreed that this Deed
shall not apply to those identified Affordable Housing Units whilst the Local Letting
Plan is in operation.

Allocations based on false information by a Rented Unit Applicant
27.

The Association agrees that if it comes to its attention that a Rented Unit has been
allocated to a person on the basis of false information supplied by that person it will
at the first opportunity take steps to investigate and establish (to include obtaining
legal advice) if it is reasonable in all the circumstances to seek to terminate the
tenancy of that person with a view to obtaining vacant possession of the Rented Unit;

27.1

the Association shall inform the Council in writing as soon as possible if an
investigation is commenced in accordance with clause 27 and will share with the
Council the results of the investigation and provide to the Council a copy of the legal
advice obtained;

27.2

if the legal advice obtained in accordance with Clause 27 states that there would be
a reasonable chance of success in obtaining a court order for possession the
Association will institute legal proceedings without delay to seek to repossess the
Rented Unit.

27.3

In the event that the Council does not agree with the legal advice given under
clause 27.1 then the Council will at its own cost obtain a second legal advice and the
Association will cooperate with the Council and provide to the Council all necessary
information and documents to enable the Council to seek the second legal advice;

27.4

where the second legal advice generally accords with the original legal advice the
action recommended by the original legal advice will be taken by the Association
without delay;

46 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 112

27.5

in the event that the second legal advice is fundamentally different to the original legal
advice the Council and the Association shall liaise and jointly decide on the
appropriate course of action to be taken PROVIDED always that the overriding
objective of both parties is to ensure that the Affordable Housing Unit is occupied by
a person who meets the relevant criteria and that the action taken is both lawful and
proportionate in the circumstances.

THE COMMON SEAL OF

)

[

Common Seal

])

Was affixed in the presence of:
Signature of [Director]
Signature of Director [Secretary]

THE COMMON SEAL OF

)

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

)

was affixed in the presence of:

)

The Common Seal of the Council

Signature:

Job Title:

47 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 113

UNILATERAL AGREEMENT – SPECIAL AREA OF CONSERVATION (‘SAC’)
DATED

201

(1) [INSERT NAME]

in favour of

(2) EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

DEED OF UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING

under Section 106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990
relating to land at [INSERT SITE DETAILS]

48 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 114

THIS DEED OF UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING is given on

20[ ]

BY:

(1)

[INSERT NAME] of [INSERT ADDRESS] ("the Landowner"); [and]

[(2)

[INSERT NAME] (Company Registration Number [INSERT NUMBER]) whose registered office
is at [INSERT REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS] (“the Mortgagee”)]

in favour of

(3)

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL of Civic Offices, High Street, Epping, Essex CM16 4BZ
(“the Council”)

BACKGROUND

(A)

For the purpose of the 1990 Act, the Council is the local planning authority for the area within
which the Site is located.

(B)

The Landowner is the freehold owner of the Site with registered title number [INSERT TITLE
NUMBER] at the Land Registry

[(C)

The Mortgagee is the proprietor of a charge dated [

] registered against title number

[INSERT TITLE NUMBER]

(D)

The Planning Application has been made to the Council by the Landowner and in granting
the Planning Permission the Council consider it expedient that provision should be made for
regulating or facilitating the Development or use of the Site in the manner hereinafter
appearing and that entering into this Deed will be of benefit to the public

49 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 115

(E)

In order to satisfy the tests in Regulation 122 (2) of the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 the Council and the other parties are satisfied that the planning obligations
contained in this Deed are necessary to make the Development acceptable in planning terms
are directly related to the Development and fairly and reasonably relate in scale and kind to
the Development

(F)

The Landowner has agreed to enter into this Deed with the intention that the obligations
contained in this Deed may in the event that the Planning Permission is granted be enforced
by the Council against the Landowner and their respective successors in title.

(G)

This Deed is entered into by the Landowner to mitigate any adverse effect on the integrity
of the European Site as a result of the Development

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:
1.

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS

1.1

This Deed is made pursuant to Section 106 of the 1990 Act to the intent that it shall bind the
Landowner and its successors in title and assigns and the persons claiming under or through
them.

1.2

This Deed creates planning obligations for the purposes of Section 106 of the 1990 Act and
such obligations and covenants hereinafter contained shall be enforceable by the Council
acting under the powers contained in Section 106 of the 1990 Act

1.3

This Deed shall come into effect on the date of this Deed

2.

INTERPRETATION

2.1

In this Deed, the following words and expressions have the following meanings:
"1990 Act"

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended

“Commencement”

means solely for the purposes of this Deed and for no
other purpose to initiate the Development by carrying
50 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 116

out a material operation as defined in section 56(4) of
the 1990 Act. Where used in the context of part of the
Development commence means the carrying out of a
material operation on that part.
"Commenced"

and

"Commence

The terms
Development",

"Commencement Date" and other congruent terms are
to be construed accordingly. The following matters do
not constitute a material operation and consequently
shall

not

individually

or

together

constitute

Commencement:
(a)

Demolition;

(b)

Site clearance;

(c)

Site investigations, testing or surveys;

(d)

The provision of underground drainage and
sewers and the laying and diversion of other
services and service medium;

(e)

Archaeological investigations and digs;

(f)

Ecological

surveys,

investigations

or

assessments;
(g)

Decontamination and remediation works;

(h)

The construction of boundary fencing or
hoardings (including the erection of an
enclosure for the purpose of site security);

"Development"

[INSERT DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT] all in
accordance with the Planning Permission

“European Site”

all that land designated on 1 April 2015 under Article
4(4) of Council Directive 92/43/EEC on the Conservation
of Natural Habitats and of Wild Flora and Fauna known
as the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation (SAC)
51 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 117

designated for the purpose of protecting three
qualifying habitats namely beech forests on acid soil,
European dry heaths and North Atlantic wet heaths
with cross-leaved heath and one qualifying species
namely the Stag Beetle

[“Index Linked””

means the recalculation of any payment specified in this
Deed by applying the following formula:-

A

B
C =D

Where:
A=

the payment specified in this Deed

B=

the figure shown in the relevant Index for the

month last published prior to the date the payment is
made under this Agreement
C=

the figure shown in the relevant Index for the

month immediately prior to the date of this Agreement
D=

the recalculated sum payable

and "Index-Linked" and other congruent terms shall be
construed accordingly]

“Mitigation Strategy”

means the interim mitigation strategy adopted by the
Council on [INSERT DATE] in respect of the European
Site

"Plan"

the site plan attached to this Deed

52 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 118

"Planning Application"

the planning application submitted to the Council and
given application reference number EPF/[INSERT
NUMBER]

“Planning Permission”

the planning permission granted pursuant to the
Planning Application

“Regulations”

means the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017.

53 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 119

“SAC Contribution”

means the sum of [£XXX] Index Linked payable to the
Council as a financial contribution towards:

i.

mitigating air pollution impacts on the
European Site as a result of increased vehicular
activity; and

ii.

maintenance,

improvement,

management,

access management and monitoring of the
European Site
to mitigate the impact of the Development on the
European Site in accordance with the Mitigation
Strategy

[“Seven Day LIBID Rate”

means an assessment of the rate of interest the Council
can expect to earn on investments through the money
market, the rate being the average interest rate at
which banks are willing to borrow Eurocurrency
deposits or in the event that the rate is no longer
published or the calculation method is substantially
altered then an appropriate alternative rate nominated
by the Council]

"Site"

means [INSERT DETAILS] shown for identification
purposes edged red on the Plan

2.2

References in this Deed to the Landowner the Council [or the Mortgagee] any one or more
of them shall include reference to their respective successors in title and to persons claiming
through or under them.

54 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 120

2.3

Words importing the singular meaning where the context so admits shall include the plural
meaning and vice versa

2.4

Words of the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter genders and words denoting
natural persons include companies corporations and firms and all such words shall be
construed interchangeably in that manner

2.5

Words denoting an obligation on the Landowner to do any act matter or thing shall include
an obligation to procure that it be done and words placing the Landowner under a restriction
shall include an obligation not to cause permit or allow infringement of the restriction

2.6

Any reference to an act of parliament shall include any modification extension or reenactment thereof for the time being in force and shall include all instruments orders plans
regulations permissions and directions for the time being made issued or given thereunder
or deriving validity therefrom

2.7

Headings contained in this Deed are for reference purposes only and should not be
incorporated into this Deed and shall not be deemed to be any indication of the meaning of
the parts of this Deed to which they relate

2.8

Reference to any recital, clause, sub-clause, paragraph number, schedule, appendix or plan
is a reference to a recital, clause or sub-clause of, paragraph number of, schedule to,
appendix to or plan annexed to this Deed;

2.9

The applicable law for this Deed shall be English law

3

NOTICES

3.1

Any notice or other written communication to be served or given by one party upon or to
any other party under the terms of this Deed shall be deemed to have been validly served or
given if received by electronic mail received by facsimile delivered by hand or sent by
55 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 121

recorded delivery post to the party upon whom it is to be served or to whom it is to be given
provided that the notice or other communication is marked as follows for each recipient:

3.1.1

for the Landowner it shall be marked for the attention of [INSERT NAME] of [INSERT
ADDRESS]

3.1.2

for the Council it shall be marked for the attention of the Service Director – Planning
Services, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping, Essex, CM16 4BZ quoting reference
EPF/[INSERT NUMBER]

3.1.3

for the Mortgagee it shall be [INSERT DETAILS]

4.

OBLIGATIONS OF THE LANDOWNER

4.1

The Landowner undertakes to comply with the obligations set out in the Schedule

4.2

The Landowner shall upon the date hereof pay to the Council its reasonable and proper legal
expenses in connection with the preparation completion and registration of this Deed in the
sum of £500.00 (no VAT)

4.3

The Landowner shall upon parting with all of its interest in the Site be released from all
obligations rights and duties under the terms of this Deed but shall remain liable for any
breaches of this Deed occurring before parting with such interest.

4.4

The Landowner covenants to give the Council written notice of any change in ownership of
any of its interests in the Site occurring before all the obligations under this Deed have been
discharged.

4.5

The notice referred to in Clause 4.4 above shall give details of the transferee’s full name and
registered office (if a company or usual address if not) together with the area of the Site or
unit of occupation purchased by reference to a plan.
56 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 122

5.

GENERAL

5.1

Any covenant by the Landowner not to do an act or thing shall be deemed to include an
obligation to use reasonable endeavours not to permit or suffer such act or thing to be done
by another person where knowledge of the actions of the other person is reasonably to be
inferred

5.2

The Landowner acknowledges that nothing in this Deed shall prejudice or affect the rights
powers duties and obligations of the Council in the exercise of its functions in any capacity
and the respective rights powers duties and obligations of the Council under private public or
subordinate legislation may be effectively exercised

5.3

Any obligation covenant or undertaking contained herein by any of the parties which
comprise more than one person or entity shall be joint and several and where any obligation
covenant or undertaking is made with or undertaken towards more than one person it shall
be construed as having been made with or undertaken towards each such person separately

5.4

If any provision of this Deed is declared by any judicial or other competent authority to be
void voidable illegal or otherwise unenforceable the remaining provisions of this Deed shall
continue in full force and effect and the parties shall amend those provisions in such a
reasonable manner so as to achieve the intention of the parties provided that any party may
seek the consent of the other or others to the termination of this Deed on such terms as may
in all the circumstances be reasonable if the effect of the foregoing provisions would be to
defeat the original intention of the parties

5.5

No variation to this Deed shall be effective unless first approved by the Council and made by
deed or pursuant to the determination of an application made under Section 106A of the
1990 Act

57 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 123

5.6

Failure by the Council to enforce at any time or for any period any one or more of the terms
or conditions of this Deed shall not be a waiver of them or of the right at any time
subsequently to enforce all terms and conditions of this Deed

5.7

Nothing in this Deed shall prohibit or limit the right to develop any part of the Site in
accordance with a planning permission (other than the Planning Permission) granted
(whether or not on appeal) after the date of this Deed

5.8

This Deed will end (to the extent it has not already been complied with), if the Planning
Permission

5.8.1

is quashed, revoked or otherwise withdrawn at any time so as to render this Deed or
any part of it irrelevant, impractical or unviable; or

5.8.2

5.9

expires before Commencement

It is hereby agreed and declared that a person who is not a local planning authority shall not
be entitled in his own right to enforce any term of this Deed pursuant to the Contracts (Rights
of Third Parties) Act 1999

5.10

This Deed shall be enforceable as a local land charge and shall be registered as such

6.

VAT

6.1

All consideration given in accordance with the terms of this Deed shall be exclusive of any
properly payable VAT.

6.2

If at any time VAT is or becomes chargeable in respect of any supply made in accordance with
the terms of this Deed then to the extent that VAT has not been charged in respect of that
supply the person making the supply shall have the right to issue a VAT invoice to the person
to whom the supply was made and the VAT shall be paid accordingly.
58 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 124

7.

INDEX-LINKING

7.1

Any sum referred to in this Deed or in the Schedules to this Deed as being payable by any
party shall be Index-Linked using the Retail Prices Index

8.

LATE PAYMENT

8.1

Without prejudice to any other right remedy or power herein contained or otherwise
available to the Council if any payment which is due to the Council under the terms of this
Deed is made later than the date such payment is due it shall attract interest at the Seven
day LIBID Rate from the date payment was due until the payment is received by the Council

9.

SPEND IN ADVANCE

9.1

If prior to the receipt of any SAC Contribution payable under the terms of this Deed the
Council incurs any expenditure in providing facilities or services to which this Deed authorises
a SAC Contribution to be applied then the Council may immediately following receipt of such
SAC Contribution deduct therefrom sums equivalent to such expenditure

10.

MORTGAGEE’S CONSENT

10.1

Subject to Clause 10.2 the Mortgagee acknowledges and declares that this Deed has been
entered into by the Landowner with its consent and that the Site shall be bound by the
obligations contained in this Deed and that the security of the mortgage over the Site shall
take effect subject to this Deed

59 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 125

10.2

The Mortgagee shall have no liability under this Deed unless it takes possession of the Site in
which case it too will be bound by the obligations, covenants and undertakings as if it were a
person deriving title from the Landowner]

IN WITNESS whereof this document has been executed as a Deed and delivered the day and
year first before written
SCHEDULE
The Landowner agrees and covenants that from the date of [this Deed] [Commencement of the
Development] the Site shall be permanently subject to the following obligations:
NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT OF DEVELOPMENT
1.

At least ten (10) working days prior to Commencement of Development written notice
confirming the date of Commencement of Development shall be given to the Council (in
accordance with the notice provision in Clause 3 of this Deed) such notice to include the
proposed date for such Commencement of Development together with details of the
person or body who or which shall constitute the owner at the time of such
Commencement of Development.

2.

Not to Commence Development unless and until the written notice referred to in paragraph
1 above has been given to the Council.

PAYMENT OF FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS
3.

To pay the SAC Contribution to the Council in cleared funds [on the date of this Deed] [prior
to the Commencement of Development].

4.

Not to Commence Development unless and until the SAC Contribution has been paid in full
to the Council

SIGNED AS A DEED by the said

)

[INSERT NAME]

)
60 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 126

in the presence of:

)

Sign:

Name:

Address:

Occupation:

SIGNED AS A DEED by the

said

[INSERT NAME]

)

in the presence of:

)

)

Sign:

Name:

Address:

Occupation:
APPENDIX G: Useful References



National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)
61 | P a g e

S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 127






National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) Planning Obligations
National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) Viability
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town IDP (April 2019)
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Strategic Viability Assessment (April 2019)

62 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 128

63 | P a g e
S106 Strategy; Delivering Infrastructure in the District
11 July 2019

Page 129

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

Report to the Cabinet
Report reference: C-005-2019/20
Date of Meeting: 11 July 2019
Subject:

Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood
Plan

Responsible Officer:

Alison Blom-Cooper (01992 564066)

Democratic Services:

Adrian Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
(1) To consider the recommendations included in the Examiner’s Report;
(2) To agree that the draft Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood
Plan, with proposed amendments, meets the basic conditions and is
compatible with European obligations; and
(3) To approve the Decision Statement (see Appendix A) for the Moreton,
Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood Plan to progress to referendum.
Executive Summary:
The Examiners Report for the draft Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood
Plan the (MBL Neighbourhood Plan) was received by Epping Forest District Council on 17
June 2019. The Examiners Report recommended that, with modifications, the MBL
Neighbourhood Plan meets the basic conditions and should proceed to a local referendum.
The recommended referendum area is the Parish of Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers.
This report sets out the background to the MBL Neighbourhood Plan, the recommendations
made by the Examiner, the Council’s proposed action against each of the recommendations
and potential timescale for a local referendum.
Reasons for Proposed Decision:
To comply with the statutory requirements in relation to Neighbourhood Planning and to
progress the Draft MBL Neighbourhood Plan to referendum stage.

Other Options for Action:
Not to make a decision on the draft MBL Neighbourhood Plan and the recommendations in
the Examiner’s Report. This would mean that the Council is not meeting the legislative
requirements and is not fulfilling its statutory duty in the production of neighbourhood plans.

Page 131

Background:
1.
Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Parish Council started to prepare a
Neighbourhood Plan for the Parish in 2013. A draft plan was produced and consulted upon
in 2014 and a further draft plan was produced and consulted in 2015. The plan was
submitted for examination and the examiner’s report was published on 18 May 2016. This
recommended that the plan should not proceed to referendum as it did not meet the basis
conditions. The Examiner’s report was considered at the Cabinet meeting on 21 July 2016
where the Council agreed that the Neighbourhood Plan proposal should be refused and
therefore should not proceed to the referendum stage.
2.
Since then the draft plan has been revised by the Parish Council and underwent
further consultation in 2017. A revised plan was submitted to the Council on 30 November
2018 and was published under Regulation 16 between 22 January and 5 March 2019.
Following that an Independent Examiner was appointed by the Council with the agreement
of the Parish Council (Mr Nigel McGurk BSc (Hons) MCD MBA MRTPI) to examine the draft
Plan against the basic conditions set out in the Localism Act 2011 (as amended). The
examination took place by way of the written representation procedure. The Examiner’s
Report was received on 17 June 2019 and recommends that, subject to a number of
modifications, the draft MBL Neighbourhood Plan meets the basic conditions and should
progress to referendum.
3.
The next step is for the Council to consider the Examiner’s recommendations, form a
view on whether the draft MBL Neighbourhood Plan meets the basic conditions, and if so
organise a local referendum as soon as practicable.
Examiner’s recommendations:
4.
Paragraph 12 of Schedule 4B of the Town and Country Planning Act (1990) requires
local authorities to consider each of the examiners recommendations, the reasons for them
and decide what action to take in response to each recommendation. It must also come to a
formal view about whether the draft plan meets the basic conditions. If the authority is
satisfied that the draft plan meets the basic conditions (requirements of para 8 schedule 4B
to the 1990 Act) and is compatible with respective European obligations such as Human
Right Convention and Habitats Directive, a referendum must be held.
5.
The Local authority’s decision on the examiner’s recommendations is bound by
section 14 of Schedule A2 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. Following a
referendum with a majority vote, local authorities must make the draft plan with examiner’s
recommended modifications except where the authority considers that the modifications are
incompatible with any European obligations. It is possible to include minor modifications to
the Plan for the purposes of correcting errors such as typos and grammatical mistakes. The
following table outlines each of the Examiner’s 32 recommendations and the Council’s
proposed actions against them.

Page 132

Examiner’s recommendation and EFDC proposed actions
Ref.
Examiner’s recommendations
1
Page 5, Neighbourhood Plan, penultimate paragraph, delete first
sentence (“This is a long term plan covering the next 20 years.”)
2
Page 3, Para A5, change to “…In addition Epping Forest’s
emerging District Local Plan is nearing adoption and the Moreton,
Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood Plan has taken
relevant information relating to this emerging District-wide Local
Plan into account.”
3
Delete “draft” from Paras A11, A14, A17, A24, A27 (second “draft”
only),
4
Delete Para A28, which has been overtaken by events, but retain
the last sentence and change to “This Neighbourhood Plan will
guide…18 years.”
5
Page 5, Para A29, change to “…with monitoring the
Neighbourhood Plan, with the aim of ensuring that its objectives
and policies are effective. In addition…for.”
6
Para A30, change to “…the next 18 years. It…”
7
8

9

10

11

12

Page 6, delete “Development which has a detrimental…not be
supported.”
Policy MBL 1.1, change the Policy text to “New open market
housing developments should predominantly comprise one or two
bedroomed homes. All new development should be sensitively
designed to respect local character and to conserve heritage
assets and their settings. Affordable housing should be of a type
and tenure that reflects the latest available local affordable housing
needs survey.” (delete rest of Policy)
Policy MBL 1.2, change the Policy text to “The delivery of
affordable housing through rural exception sites where appropriate
should take into account the need to minimise impacts on the
openness of the Green Belt.” (delete rest of Policy)
Policy MBL 1.3, change the Policy text to “The conversion of a
redundant building into residential use will be supported where the
building is of permanent and substantial construction and
development preserves the openness of the Green Belt. The
incorporation of sustainable construction techniques and
renewable energy technologies that respect the character of the
building and its surroundings will be supported.” (delete rest of
Policy)
Policy MBL 1.4, change the Policy text to “The replacement of a
permanent dwelling will be supported, subject to the new dwelling
not being materially larger than the one it replaces. Replacement
dwellings should be sympathetic to and respect local character.
The incorporation of sustainable construction techniques and
renewable energy technologies that respect the character of the
building and its surroundings will be supported.” (delete rest of
Policy)
Page 9, supporting text, second para, line 10, change to “…must
have regard to national planning policy and advice and be in
general conformity with our District’s Local Plan.” (delete
remainder of sentence)

Page 133

Proposed action
To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation

To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation

To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation

To accept the
recommendation

To accept the
recommendation

13

14
15

16

17
18
19

20
21
22
23
24

Page 9, supporting text, last para, delete and replace with
To accept the
“National Green Belt policy is set out in the Green Belt chapter of
recommendation
the National Planning Policy Framework. This establishes that the
construction of new buildings in the Green Belt is inappropriate, but
that exceptions to this include the replacement of a building,
provided the new building is in the same use and not materially
larger than the one it replaces; limited infilling in villages, and
limited affordable housing for local community needs; the
redevelopment of brownfield land; and the re-use of buildings
provided that they are of permanent and substantial construction.”
Delete Policy MBL 2.1
To accept the
recommendation
Policy MBL 2.2, change wording to “Proposals for the sustainable
To accept the
growth and expansion of business and enterprise, both through the recommendation
conversion of existing buildings and the development of welldesigned new buildings, will be supported, subject to
demonstrating respect for local character, residential amenity and
highway safety. Development should, where viable and
deliverable, incorporate renewable and low carbon technologies.”
(Delete rest of Policy)
Policy MBL 2.3, change wording to “The development and
To accept the
diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural businesses recommendation
will be supported, subject to taking into account local character,
residential amenity and highway safety Development should,
where viable and deliverable, incorporate renewable and low
carbon technologies.” (Delete rest of Policy)
Delete Policy MBL 2.4
To accept the
recommendation
Page 8, supporting text, first para, first line, change to “The Parish
To accept the
Council is keen to enable small businesses…employment
recommendation
opportunities.” Delete second sentence.
Page 8, supporting text, second para, first line, change to “The
To accept the
Parish Council also seeks to ensure that development is
recommendation
sympathetic to the…signage and parking. The Parish Council is
keen to ensure that the approach to new development does not
preclude modern…designs; and that business growth does not
result in harm to highway safety, for example through a significant
amount of extra…rural lanes. The Parish Council is also keen to
target zero carbon emissions and encourage the use of renewable
technologies.”
Policy MBL 3.1, change first line to “Proposals for communications To accept the
infrastructure will be supported provided that the following criteria
recommendation
are met”
MBL 3.1 ii, add “…seek to minimise any impact on the external…”
To accept the
recommendation
MBL 3.1 iii, delete the second sentence (“Such…authority”) which
To accept the
is a planning application requirement matter for the Local Planning recommendation
Authority
Delete the final criterion (“iv. the development…interest”)
To accept the
recommendation
Page 14, supporting text, first para, change to “The Parish Council To accept the
seeks the improvement of broadband speeds and mobile phone
recommendation
signals for residents and businesses, to enhance quality…our
Parish. We will…”

Page 134

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

Policy MBL 4.1, change to “Development should not result in harm
to highway safety.” (delete rest of Policy)
Policy MBL 4.2, change to “New development should provide
sufficient off-road parking spaces such that development does not
result in increased on-road car parking. Development must achieve
adopted County car parking standards as a minimum.” (delete rest
of Policy)
Policy MBL 4.3, change to “Improvements to public rights of way
will be supported, as will proposals to enhance rights of way as
green corridors in the living landscape.”
Page 15, supporting text, delete Para A69 and replace with:
“Whilst not an issue that can be tackled by the Neighbourhood
Plan, the Parish Council, whilst recognising the need for the
movement of people and goods by road, would like to see a
reduction in the negative impacts caused by vehicles to roads and
lanes within the Parish. The Neighbourhood Plan provides for
highway safety, car parking and the enhancement of public rights
of way.”
Policy MBL 5.1, delete wording and replace with “Renewable
energy installations will be supported where they respect local
character and residential amenity.”
Page 16, supporting text, Para A72, delete and replace with “The
Parish Council seeks to reduce the carbon footprint of the Parish
and will encourage proposals to incorporate the technology to help
to achieve this.”
Update the Contents and where necessary, Policy, paragraph and
page numbering, to take into account the recommendations
contained in this Report.
I recommend to Epping Forest District Council that, subject to the
recommended modifications, the Moreton, Bobbingworth and the
Lavers Neighbourhood Plan should proceed to a Referendum.

To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation

To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation

To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation
To accept the
recommendation

6.
Taking into account the recommendations in the Examiner’s Report, it is considered
that the draft MBL Neighbourhood Plan meets the basic conditions and should proceed to a
local referendum. Section 18 of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012
(as amended) requires local authorities to produce a decision statement on the above
matters within five weeks of the publication of the Examiner’s Report, or within a timescale
agreed with the qualifying body (the MBL Parish Council). The draft decision statement is
included in Appendix A of this report.
Local Referendum
7.
To meet the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 a referendum will need to be held
in the area formally designated as the Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers
Neighbourhood Area. In this case the designated area is the same as the parish of Moreton,
Bobbingworth and the Lavers. The proposed date for the referendum is 26 September 2019.
In accordance with Schedule 1 of the Neighbourhood Planning (Referendums) Regulation
2012, the question to be used in the referendum will be:
‘‘Do you want Epping Forest District Council to use the Moreton,
Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood Plan to help it decide

Page 135

planning applications in the Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers
Neighbourhood Area?’’
8.
If the majority of those who vote in a referendum are in favour of the draft
neighbourhood plan, the Council will need to formally adopt the Neighbourhood Plan within 8
weeks of the referendum.
Resource Implications:
The activities in relation to the publication of the decision statement and the cost for
undertaking local referendum are all to be met within the 2019/20 budget. The Council can
claim £20,000 grant once a date has been set for a referendum following a successful
examination.
Legal and Governance Implications:
It is the Council’s statutory duty to make a decision on the draft MBL Neighbourhood Plan
and the recommendations in the Examiner’s Report, as well as undertaking a local
referendum on the draft Plan.
Safer, Cleaner, and Greener Implications:
N/A
Consultation Undertaken:
N/A.
Background Papers:
Examiner’s Report on the Draft MBL Neighbourhood Plan (2018)
The Draft MBL Neighbourhood Plan and associated documents
Report to Cabinet on 21 July 2016
All documentation is available on the Council’s website at:
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy/neighbourhoodplanning/moreton-bobbingworth-and-the-lavers-neighbourhood-plan-examination/
Risk Management:
To avoid being challenged on not meeting relevant legal requirements, the Council should
make a decision on the MBL Neighbourhood Plan and progress the Plan to the referendum
stage in a timely manner in line with the timescale set out in the relevant legislations.

Page 136

Appendix A
The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012
Regulation 18 Decision Statement
Summary
Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood Plan
Following an Independent Examination Epping Forest District Council confirms formal
acceptance of the recommendations outlined in the Chigwell Neighbourhood Plan
Examination Report. The Examiner recommended that the Moreton, Bobbingworth and the
Lavers Neighbourhood Plan (hereafter, the Plan) should proceed to referendum as, subject
to recommendations made by the Examiner, the plan meet all of the basic conditions
required of a Neighbourhood Plan. This matter was considered at the Epping Forest District
Council Cabinet Meeting held on 11 July 2019 where the Cabinet agreed that, the plan
proposal be accepted and should therefore proceed to referendum.
Background
Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Parish Council, as the qualifying body successfully
applied in 2013 for the whole Parish to be designated as a Neighbourhood Area, under the
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations (2012), which came into force on 6 April
2012.
A draft neighbourhood plan was produced and consulted upon in spring 2014 and a further
draft plan was produced and consulted in spring 2015. The plan was submitted in
September 2015 for examination and the examiner’s report was published in May 2016. The
report recommended that the plan should not progress to referendum as it did not meet the
basis conditions.
A revised plan was published and consulted upon in winter 2017. The revised plan was
submitted and publicised between 22 January 2019 and 5 March 2019. All representations
were sent to the independent examiner appointed to examine the plan which was
undertaken under the written representations procedure. The Examiner’s Report was
published on 17 June 2019.
Recommendations, Decisions and Reasons
The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (Regulation 18) require the local
planning authority to outline what action is to be taken in response to the recommendations
of an examiner under paragraph 10 of Schedule 4a to the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as applied by Section 38A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
Having considered the recommendations made in the Examiner’s Report, and the reasons
for them, Epping Forest District Council has agreed to accept the modifications made to the
draft plan under paragraph 12(6) of Schedule 4B to the Town and Country Planning Act

Page 137

1990 in response to the Examiner’s recommendations. The Council also agreed that the
plan proposal should proceed to referendum.
The report to Cabinet on 11 July 2019 can be viewed at
[link]
The Examiner’s Report can be viewed at:
https://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy/neighbourhoodplanning/moreton-bobbingworth-and-the-lavers-neighbourhood-plan-examination/
Local Referendum
To meet the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 a referendum which poses the question,
‘Do you want Epping Forest District Council to use the Moreton, Bobbingworth and
the Lavers Neighbourhood Plan to help it decide planning applications in the
Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood Area?’
will be held in the area formally designated as the Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers
Neighbourhood Area.
The date on which the referendum will take place is 26 September 2019.

Page 138

Section 1: Identifying details
Your function, service area and team: Planning Service
If you are submitting this EqIA on behalf of another function, service area or team, specify the
originating function, service area or team: N/A
Title of policy or decision: Approval of Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers Neighbourhood
Plan for Referendum
Officer completing the EqIA: Alison Blom Cooper Tel: 01992 564066
ablomcooper@eppingforest.gov.uk

Email:

Date of completing the assessment: 06 June 2019

Section 2: Policy to be analysed
2.1

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an existing policy, practice or
project?
This is a new policy document.

2.2

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the policy (or decision):
An adopted neighbourhood plan will influence future developments within
the designated neighbourhood area of Moreton, Bobbingworth and the
Lavers Parish
.
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie decommissioning or commissioning
a service)?
Agreement, as recommended in the Examiner’s report, that the
Neighbourhood Plan meets the basic conditions and therefore should
proceed to referendum.

2.3

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
 service users - Yes
 employees - Yes
 the wider community or groups of people, particularly where there are areas
of known inequalities? - Yes
Will the policy or decision influence how organisations operate?
In respect of determining planning application yes.

Page 139
EQiA for MBL report to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

2.4

Will the policy or decision involve substantial changes in resources?
No

2.5

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the Council’s other policies and
how, if applicable, does the proposed policy support corporate outcomes?
Once ‘made’. The Neighbourhood Plan would form part of the Council’s
Development Plan and have the same weight as the policies in an adopted
Local Plan.

Page 140
EQiA for MBL report to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

Section 3: Evidence/data about the user population and
consultation1
As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected
which will support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage,
customer satisfaction surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national,
regional and local data sources).
3.1

What does the information tell you about those groups identified?
The Draft Neighbourhood Plan applies to every communities and individuals
within the Parish of Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers.

3.2

Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision you want to implement? If so, what were their views and how have
their views influenced your decision?
See answer to question 3.3 below

3.3

If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected
by the policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation
or provide reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:
As part of their submission documents Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers
Parish Council published a ‘Consultation Statement’ detailing what steps had
been taken to engage with local communities and other organisations.
The Council has engaged constructively with the Parish Council and provided
the Parish Council with advice and assistance in the preparation of its
neighbourhood plan in accordance with its statutory duties throughout the
process to date and will continue to provide such advice and assistance.
The draft Plan is also subject to a Local referendum before it can be formally
adopted by the District Council.

Page 141
EQiA for MBL report to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

Section 4: Impact of policy or decision
Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you now
know.
Description of impact

Nature of impact
Positive, neutral, adverse
(explain why)

Extent of impact
Low, medium, high
(use L, M or H)

Age

Neutral – no impact

M (this is
dependent upon
whether individuals
engage which
could be very
positive for the
group.

Disability

Neutral – no impact

Gender

Neutral – no impact

Gender reassignment

Neutral – no impact

Marriage/civil partnership

Neutral – no impact

Pregnancy/maternity

Neutral – no impact

Race

Neutral – no impact

Religion/belief

Neutral – no impact

Sexual orientation

Neutral – no impact

Page 142
EQiA for MBL report to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

Section 5: Conclusion
Tick
Yes/No as
appropriate
5.1

Does the EqIA in
Section 4 indicate that
the policy or decision
would have a medium
or high adverse impact
on one or more
equality groups?

No

Yes

Page 143
EQiA for MBL report to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

If ‘YES’, use the action
plan at Section 6 to describe
the adverse impacts
and what mitigating actions
you could put in place.

Section 6: Action plan to address and monitor adverse impacts
What are the potential
adverse impacts?

What are the mitigating actions?

Page 144
EQiA for MBL report to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

Date they will be
achieved.

Section 7: Sign off
I confirm that this initial analysis has been completed appropriately.
(A typed signature is sufficient.)
Signature of Head of Service: Alison Blom-Cooper

Date: 06/06/2019

Signature of person completing the EqIA: Tai Tsui

Date: 06/06/2019

Advice
Keep your director informed of all equality & diversity issues. We recommend that you forward
a copy of every EqIA you undertake to the director responsible for the service area. Retain a
copy of this EqIA for your records. If this EqIA relates to a continuing project, ensure this
document is kept under review and updated, eg after a consultation has been undertaken.

Page 145
EQiA for MBL report to Cabinet on 11 July 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 147

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 157

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 165

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 177

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 255

This page is intentionally left blank

